IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

In re:		Chapter 11
MIG, INC.,		Case No. 09-12118 (KG)
	Debtor.	

CHAPTER 11 PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR MIG, INC.

DATED: November 17, 2009

GREENBERG TRAURIG, LLP

Scott D. Cousins (DE Bar No. 3079) Sandra G. M. Selzer (DE Bar No. 4283) The Nemours Building 1007 North Orange Street, Suite 1200 Wilmington, Delaware 19801 Telephone: (302) 661-7000

Facsimile: (302) 661-7360 cousinss@gtlaw.com Email:

selzers@gtlaw.com

-and-

Nancy A. Mitchell Maria J. DiConza 200 Park Avenue New York, New York 10166

Telephone: (212) 801-9200 Facsimile: (212) 801-6400 Email:

mitchelln@gtlaw.com

diconzam@gtlaw.com

Counsel for the Debtor and Debtor-in-Possession

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
INTRODUCTION	1
ARTICLE I: DEFINED TERMS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION	1
ARTICLE II: CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS	15
Section 2.01 Introduction	15
Section 2.02 Unclassified Claims (not entitled to vote on the Plan)	
(a) Administrative Claims	
(b) Priority Tax Claims	
Section 2.03 Unimpaired Classes of Claims and Interests (deemed to have accepted	
the Plan and, therefore, not entitled to vote on the Plan)	15
(a) Class 1. Other Priority Claims	15
(b) Class 2. Secured Workers' Compensation Obligations Claims	15
Section 2.04 Impaired/Voting Classes of Claims	16
(a) Class 3. Hauf Secured Claims	
(b) Class 4. General Unsecured Claims	
(c) Class 5. Appraisal Claims	
(d) Class 6. Non-Appraisal Claims	
(e) Class 7. Common Equity Interests	16
ARTICLE III: TREATMENT OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS	16
Section 3.01 Unclassified Claims	16
(a) Administrative Claims	16
(b) Priority Tax Claims	16
Section 3.02 Unimpaired Classes of Claims and Interests	16
(a) Class 1: Other Priority Claims	
(b) Class 2: Secured Workers' Compensation Obligations Claims	
Section 3.03 Impaired/Voting Classes of Claims and Interests	
(a) Class 3: Hauf Secured Claims	
(b) Class 4: General Unsecured Claims	
(c) Class 5: Appraisal Claims	
(d) Class 6: Non-Appraisal Claims	
(e) Class 7: Common Equity Interests	
Section 3.04 Special Provisions Regarding Insured Claims	
Section 3.05 Reservation of Rights Regarding Claims	20
ARTICLE IV: ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF THE PLAN	20
Section 4.01 Impaired Classes of Claims Entitled to Vote	20
Section 4.02 Acceptance by an Impaired Class	
Section 4.03 Presumed Acceptances by Unimpaired Classes	

Section 4.04	Confirmation Pursuant to Section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code	20
Section 4.05	Elimination of Vacant Classes	21
ARTICI E V· M	EANS FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN	21
THETTELL V. IVI		21
Section 5.01	Continued Corporate Existence	21
Section 5.02	Corporate Governance	21
Section 5.03	Cancellation of Common Equity Interests and Agreement	22
Section 5.04	Authorization and Issuance of New Common LLC Interests and New	
	Preferred LLC Interests	
	New Board of Managers of the Reorganized Debtor	
	Management Incentive Plan.	24
Section 5.08	Revesting of Assets; Preservation of Causes of Action, Litigation Rights	
a	and Avoidance Actions; Release of Liens	
	Restructuring Transactions	
	Preservation of Rights of Action; Resulting Claim Treatment	
	Effectuating Documents; Further Transactions	
	Exemption from Certain Transfer Taxes	
	Corporate Action	
	Reorganized Debtor's Obligations Under the Plan	
Section 5.15	Transactions on Business Days	21
ARTICLE VI: T	REATMENT OF EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEA	SES
		27
G 601		27
	Assumption of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases	
	Assignment of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases	28
Section 6.03	Cure Rights for Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Assumed Under Plan	20
Section 6.04	Rejection Damages Bar Date for Rejections Pursuant to Plan	
	Rejection of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases	
	Certain Indemnification Obligations Owed by Debtor	
	Continuing Obligations Owed to Debtor	
	Limited Extension of Time to Assume or Reject	
	Post-petition Contracts and Leases	
	Treatment of Claims Arising from Assumption or Rejection	
Section 0.10	Treatment of Claims Arising from Assumption of Rejection	31
ARTICLE VII:	PROVISIONS GOVERNING DISTRIBUTIONS	31
	Distributions for Allowed Claims	
	Interest of Claims; Dividends	
	Designation; Distributions by Disbursing Agent	
	Means of Cash Payment	
	Fractional Distributions	
	De Minimis Distributions	
	Delivery of Distributions	
Section 7.08	Application of Distribution Record Date	34

Section 7.09 Withholding, Payment and Reporting Requirements	34
Section 7.10 Setoffs	
Section 7.11 Pre-Payment	
Section 7.12 No Distribution in Excess of Allowed Amounts	
Section 7.13 Allocation of Distributions	
ARTICLE VIII: PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING DISPUTED, CONTINGENT, AND UNLIQUIDATED CLAIMS AND DISTRIBUTIONS WITH RESPECT THERETO	35
Section 8.01 Prosecution of Objections to Claims	35
(a) Objections to Claims; Estimation Proceedings	35
(b) Authority to Prosecute Objections	
Section 8.02 Treatment of Disputed Claims	
(a) No Distribution Pending Allowance	
(b) Distributions on Accounts of Disputed Claims Once They are Allowed	
Section 8.03 Provisions for Disputed Claims	
Section 8.04 Accounts; Escrows; Reserves	
(a) Administrative Claims Reserve	
(b) Professional Fee Reserve	
ARTICLE IX: CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO CONFIRMATION AND CONSUMMATION OF THE PLAN	
Section 9.01 Conditions to Confirmation	
Section 9.02 Conditions to the Effective Date	
Section 9.03 Notice of Occurrence of the Effective Date	
Section 9.04 Waiver of Conditions	
Section 9.05 Consequences of Non-Occurrence of Effective Date	
Section 9.06 Substantial Consummation	39
ARTICLE X: RETENTION OF JURISDICTION	40
Section 10.01 Scope of Retention of Jurisdiction	40
Section 10.02 Failure of the Bankruptcy Court to Exercise Jurisdiction	41
ARTICLE XI: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	42
Section 11.01 Administrative Claims	42
Section 11.02 Professional Fee Claims	42
Section 11.03 Payment of Statutory Fees	43
Section 11.04 Modifications and Amendments	
Section 11.05 Continuing Exclusivity and Solicitation Period	43
Section 11.06 Severability of Plan Provisions	
Section 11.07 Successors and Assigns and Binding Effect	
Section 11.08 Compromises and Settlements	44
Section 11.09 Releases and Satisfaction of Subordination Rights	
Section 11.10 Releases and Related Matters	45

(a) Releas	ses by Debtor	45
(b) Releas	ses by Holders of Claims	45
Section 11.11	Discharge of the Debtor	46
Section 11.12	Injunction	47
Section 11.13	Exculpation and Limitations of Liability	47
Section 11.14	Term of Injunctions or Stays	48
Section 11.15	Revocation, Withdrawal or Non-Consummation	48
Section 11.16	Plan Supplement	49
Section 11.17	Dissolution of the Committee	49
Section 11.18	Continued Confidentiality Obligations	49
Section 11.19	Notices	50
Section 11.20	Computation of Time	50
Section 11.21	Governing Law	51
Section 11.22	Exhibits	51

CHAPTER 11 PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR MIG, INC.

INTRODUCTION1

MIG, Inc., as a debtor and debtor in possession (the "<u>Debtor</u>"), hereby proposes this Plan for the resolution of the outstanding Claims against and Interests in the Debtor. Reference is made to the Disclosure Statement for a discussion of (i) the Debtor's history, businesses, properties, results of operations, and projections for future operations, (ii) a summary and analysis of this Plan, and (iii) certain related matters, including risk factors relating to the consummation of this Plan and Distributions to be made under this Plan.

ALL HOLDERS OF CLAIMS AGAINST AND INTERESTS IN THE DEBTOR ARE ENCOURAGED TO READ THE PLAN AND THE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT IN THEIR ENTIRETY BEFORE VOTING TO ACCEPT OR REJECT THE PLAN. SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN SECTION 1127 OF THE BANKRUPTCY CODE, BANKRUPTCY RULE 3019, AND IN THE PLAN, THE DEBTOR RESERVES THE RIGHT TO ALTER, AMEND, MODIFY, REVOKE OR WITHDRAW THE PLAN, OR ANY PART THEREOF, PRIOR TO ITS SUBSTANTIAL CONSUMMATION.

The Debtor is the proponent of the Plan within the meaning of section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code.

ARTICLE I:

DEFINED TERMS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION

For purposes of the Plan, except as expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires, (a) all capitalized terms used in the Plan and not otherwise defined in the Plan shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Disclosure Statement (or any exhibit hereto or thereto), (b) any capitalized term used in the Plan that is not defined in the Plan, but is defined in the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules, shall have the meaning ascribed to that term in the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules, as applicable, (c) whenever the context requires, each term stated in either the singular or the plural shall include the singular and the plural, and pronouns stated in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender shall include the masculine, feminine and the neuter, (d) any reference in the Plan to a contract, instrument, release, indenture, or other agreement or document being in a particular form or on particular terms and conditions means that such document shall be substantially in such form or substantially on such terms and conditions, (e) any reference in the Plan to an existing document or exhibit means such document or exhibit as it may be amended, modified, or supplemented from time to time, (f) unless otherwise specified, all references in the Plan to sections, articles, schedules, and exhibits are references to sections, articles, schedules, and exhibits of or to the Plan, (g) the words

-

All capitalized terms used in the Plan and not otherwise defined in Article I of the Plan shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Disclosure Statement (or any exhibit hereto).

- "herein," "hereof," "hereto," "hereunder," and other words of similar import refer to the Plan in its entirety rather than to any particular paragraph, subparagraph, or clause contained in the Plan, (h) captions and headings to articles and sections are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the provisions hereof or the interpretation of the Plan, and (i) the rules of construction set forth in section 102 of the Bankruptcy Code and in the Bankruptcy Rules shall apply.
- 1.1 "Administrative Claim" means a Claim for any costs or expenses of administration of the Estate under sections 503(b), 507(b) or 1114(e)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code, including, without limitation, for: (a) any actual and necessary costs and expenses incurred after the Petition Date of preserving the Estate and operating the businesses of the Debtor; (b) any payment to be made under the Plan to cure a default on an assumed Executory Contract or assumed Unexpired Lease; (c) any postpetition cost, indebtedness or contractual obligation duly and validly incurred or assumed by the Debtor in the ordinary course of its business; (d) any Allowed Claims that are entitled to be treated as Administrative Claims pursuant to a Final Order under section 546(c)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code; (e) any Allowed Claims of Professionals in the Chapter 11 Case; and (f) any fees and charges assessed against the Estate under chapter 123 of title 28 of the United States Code, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1911-1930.
- **1.2** "Administrative Claims Bar Date" means the date (or dates), if any, set by the Bankruptcy Court as the last day for Filing all requests for payment of Administrative Claims.
- **1.3** "Administrative Claims Reserve" means the reserve of Cash established and maintained by the Debtor and Reorganized Debtor to pay Allowed Administrative Claims, including Claims under section 503(b)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code and all Claims for rent under section 503(b) of the Bankruptcy Code and lease payments under section 365(d)(5) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- **1.4** "Administrative Expense Request" means a request for the payment of an Administrative Claim.
 - **1.5** "Affiliate" means "affiliate" as defined in section 101(2) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 1.7 "Alleged Fraudulent Transfer Claims" means the claims alleged by the Committee in connection with its Motion for Order Granting the Committee Standing to: (i) Prosecute Actions on Behalf of the Debtor's Estate; and (ii) Seek a Temporary Restraining Order, Preliminary Injunction and Other Related Relief dated November 17, 2009 [Docket No. 310].
- 1.8 "Allowed" means with respect to any Claim (including any Administrative Claim) or portion thereof (to the extent such Claim is not Disputed or Disallowed) or any Interest (a) any Claim or Interest, proof of which (i) was timely Filed with the Bankruptcy Court or its duly appointed claims agent, (ii) was deemed timely filed pursuant to section 1111(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, or (iii) by a Final Order, was not required to be Filed; (b) any Claim or Interest that has been, or hereafter is, listed in the Schedules as liquidated in an amount other than zero or unknown and not Disputed or Contingent (or as to which the applicable Proof of Claim has been withdrawn or Disallowed); and (c) any Claim or Interest which has been allowed

(whether in whole or in part) by a Final Order (but only to the extent so allowed), and, in (a), (b) and (c) above, as to which no objection to the allowance thereof, or action to subordinate, avoid, classify, reclassify, expunge, estimate or otherwise limit recovery with respect thereto, has been Filed within the applicable period of limitation fixed by the Plan, the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules or a Final Order; (d) any Claim or Interest allowed under or pursuant to the terms of the Plan; (e) any Claim arising from the recovery of property under sections 550 or 553 of the Bankruptcy Code which has been allowed in accordance with section 503(h) of the Bankruptcy Code; (f) a Claim relating to a rejected Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that either (i) is not a Disputed Claim or (ii) has been allowed by a Final Order, in either case only if a Proof of Claim has been Filed by the applicable Bar Date or has otherwise been deemed timely Filed under applicable law; or (g) which is a Professional Claim for which a fee award amount has been approved by order of the Bankruptcy Court; provided, however, that Claims or Interests allowed solely for the purpose of voting to accept or reject the Plan pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court shall not be considered "Allowed" hereunder.

- **1.9** "Allowed Claim" means an Allowed Claim of the particular type or Class described.
- **1.10 "Allowed** __ Claim" means, with respect to any specified Class or type of Claim, whether classified or unclassified, that the referenced Claim is an Allowed Claim.
- **1.11 "Allowed Final Appraisal Amount"** means \$188,367,736.47 or such other amount as determined in the Final Appraisal Judgment, together with interest thereon at the rate provided for in the Final Appraisal Judgment to and including the day prior to the Effective Date, or as otherwise provided by the Bankruptcy Court.
- **1.12** "Allowed Non-Appraisal Amount" means \$32 million or such other amount as determined based on a methodology consistent with that applied in the Final Appraisal Judgment, together with interest thereon at the rate provided for in the Final Appraisal Judgment to and including the day prior to the Effective Date, or as otherwise provided by the Bankruptcy Court.
- **1.13** "Appraisal Action" means *In re: Appraisal of Metromedia International Group, Inc.*, Civil Action No. 3351-CC in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware.
- **1.14** "Appraisal Claims" means Claims arising in connection with the Appraisal Action.
- **1.15** "Appraisal Claims Representative" means one (1) Holder of an Appraisal Claim designated by the Committee on or before the Effective Date to attend and observe all meetings of the New Board of the Reorganized Debtor.
- **1.16** "Avoidance Actions" means any and all Causes of Action (other than those which are released or dismissed as part of and pursuant to the Plan) which a trustee, debtor-in-possession, the estate or other appropriate party in interest may assert under sections 502(d), 510, 541, 542, 543, 544, 545, 547, 548, 549, 550, 551, or 553 of the Bankruptcy Code or under related state or federal statutes and common law, including, without limitation, fraudulent transfer laws (whether or not litigation is commenced to prosecute such Causes of Action) and including the

Debtor's rights of setoff, recoupment, contribution, reimbursement, subrogation or indemnity (as those terms are defined by the non-bankruptcy law of any relevant jurisdiction) and any other indirect claim of any kind whatsoever, whenever and wherever arising or asserted. The term "Avoidance Actions" includes the Alleged Fraudulent Transfer Claims.

- **1.17** "Ballot" means each of the ballot forms, other than a master ballot form, distributed to each Holder of a Claim or Interest entitled to vote to accept or reject this Plan.
- **1.18** "Bankruptcy Code" means the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1978, as codified in title 11 of the United States Code, 11 U.S.C. §§ 101-1532, as in effect on the Petition Date, together with all amendments and modifications thereto that were subsequently made applicable to the Chapter 11 Case.
- **1.19** "Bankruptcy Court" means the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware or such other court as may have jurisdiction over the Chapter 11 Case or any aspect thereof.
- 1.20 "Bankruptcy Rules" means (i) the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and the Official Bankruptcy Forms, as amended and promulgated under section 2075 of title 28 of the United States Code, (ii) the applicable Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, as amended and promulgated under section 2072 of title 28 of the United States Code, (iii) the applicable Local Rules of Bankruptcy Practice and Procedure for the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware, and (iv) any standing orders governing practice and procedure issued by the Bankruptcy Court, each as in effect on the Petition Date, together with all amendments and modifications thereto that were subsequently made applicable to the Chapter 11 Case or proceedings therein, as the case may be.
- **1.21** "Bar Date(s)" means the date (or dates) set by the Bankruptcy Court as the last day for Filing a Proof of Claim against the Debtor in the Chapter 11 Case.
- **1.22** "Business Day" means any day, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, or "legal holidays" (as defined in Bankruptcy Rule 9006(a)), on which commercial banks are open for business in Wilmington, Delaware.
- **1.23** "Cash or \$" means legal tender of the United States of America or the equivalent thereof, including bank deposits, checks and cash equivalents.
- 1.24 "Causes of Action" means any and all actions, causes of action, Claims, rights, defenses, liabilities, obligations, executions, choses in action, controversies, rights (including rights to legal remedies, rights to equitable remedies, rights to payment), suits, debts, damages, judgments, remedies, demands, setoffs, defenses, recoupments, crossclaims, counterclaims, third-party claims, indemnity claims, contribution claims or any other claims whatsoever, whether known or unknown, reduced to judgment or not reduced to judgment, liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, disputed or undisputed, secured or unsecured, choate or inchoate, existing or hereafter arising, suspected or unsuspected, foreseen or unforeseen, and whether asserted or assertable directly, indirectly or derivatively, at law, in equity or otherwise, based on whole or in part upon any act or omission or other event occurring

prior to the Petition Date or during the course of the Chapter 11 Case, including through the Effective Date.

- **1.25** "Chapter 11 Case" means chapter 11 case number 09-12118 (KG) commenced by the Debtor in the Bankruptcy Court.
- **1.26** "Claim" means any "claim" against the Debtor as defined in Bankruptcy Code section 101(5).
- **1.27** "Claims Objection Bar Date" means the date that is ninety (90) days after the Effective Date or such later date as may be extended by order of the Bankruptcy Court.
- **1.28** "Class" means a category of Holders of Claims or Common Equity Interests pursuant to section 1122(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, as described in Articles II and III of the Plan.
- **1.29** "Collateral" means any property or interest in property of the Debtor's Estate subject to a Lien to secure the payment or performance of a Claim, which Lien is not subject to avoidance under the Bankruptcy Code or otherwise invalid under the Bankruptcy Code or applicable state law.
- **1.30** "Common A Membership Interests" means the common limited liability company interests in the Reorganized Debtor (as diluted by the Common B Membership Interests) issued by the Reorganized Debtor on the Distribution Date to the Holders of Class 7 Allowed Claims. The Common A Membership Interests will be represented by "Common A Units."
 - 1.31 "Common B Membership Equity Distribution Value" means \$84 million.
- **1.33** "Common B Membership Interests" means fifteen percent (15%) of the common limited liability company interests in the Reorganized Debtor issued by the Reorganized Debtor on the Distribution Date to the Holders of Class 5 Allowed Claims and the Holders of Allowed Class 6 Claims that are Electing Class 6 Holders. The Common B Membership Interests will be represented by "Common B Units."
- **1.34** "Common Equity Interest" means any share of common stock, preferred stock or other instrument evidencing an ownership interest in the Debtor, whether or not transferable, and any option, warrant or right, contractual or otherwise, to acquire any such interest in the Debtor that existed immediately prior to the Effective Date.
- **1.35** "Confirmation" means the entry of the Confirmation Order on the docket of the Chapter 11 Case, subject to all conditions specified having been (a) satisfied, or (b) waived.
- **1.36** "Confirmation Date" means the date upon which the Bankruptcy Court enters the Confirmation Order on the docket of the Chapter 11 Case, within the meaning of Bankruptcy Rules 5003 and 9021.

- **1.37** "Confirmation Hearing" means the hearing held by the Bankruptcy Court to consider Confirmation of the Plan, as such hearing may be adjourned or continued from time to time.
- **1.38** "Confirmation Order" means the order of the Bankruptcy Court confirming the Plan pursuant to, among others, section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - **1.39** "Consummation" means the occurrence of the Effective Date.
- **1.40** "Contingent" means, with reference to a Claim, a Claim that has not accrued or is not otherwise payable and the accrual of which, or the obligation to make payment on which, is dependent upon a future event that may or may not occur.
 - **1.41** "Creditor" means any Holder of a Claim.
- **1.42** "Creditors Committee" means the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors appointed by the U.S. Trustee in the Chapter 11 Case pursuant to section 1102(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, as the membership of such committee is from time to time constituted and reconstituted.
- 1.43 "Cure" means the Distribution of Cash, or such other property as may be agreed upon by the parties or ordered by the Bankruptcy Court, with respect to the assumption or assumption and assignment of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease, pursuant to Bankruptcy Code section 365(b), in an amount equal to all unpaid monetary obligations, without interest, or such other amount as may be agreed upon by the parties, under such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease, to the extent such obligations are enforceable under the Bankruptcy Code and applicable bankruptcy law.
 - **1.44** "**Debtor**" is defined in the Introduction to this Plan.
- "Disallowed" means, with respect to any Claim or Interest or portion thereof, any Claim against or Interest in the Debtor which: (i) has been disallowed, in whole or part, by a Final Order; (ii) has been withdrawn by agreement of the Holder thereof and the Debtor, in whole or in part; (iii) has been withdrawn, in whole or in part, by the Holder thereof; (iv) if listed in the Schedules as zero or as Disputed, contingent or unliquidated and in respect of which a Proof of Claim or a Proof of Interest, as applicable, has not been timely Filed or deemed timely Filed pursuant to the Plan, the Bankruptcy Code or any Final Order or other applicable law; (v) has been reclassified, expunged, subordinated or estimated to the extent that such reclassification, expungement, subordination or estimation results in a reduction in the Filed amount of any Proof of Claim or Proof of Interest; (vi) is evidenced by a Proof of Claim or a Proof of Interest which has been Filed, or which has been deemed to be Filed under applicable law or order of the Bankruptcy Court or which is required to be Filed by order of the Bankruptcy Court but as to which such Proof of Claim or Proof of Interest was not timely or properly Filed; (vii) is unenforceable to the extent provided in section 502(b) of the Bankruptcy Code; (viii) where the holder of a Claim is a Person or Entity from which property is recoverable under sections 542, 543, 550, or 553 of the Bankruptcy Code or that is a transferee of a transfer avoidable under sections 522(f), 522(h), 544, 545, 547, 548, 549, or 724(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, unless such Person, Entity or transferee has paid the amount, or turned over any such

Property, for which such Person, Entity or transferee is liable under section 522(i), 542, 543, 550, or 553 of the Bankruptcy Code; or (ix) is for reimbursement or contribution that is contingent as of the time of allowance or disallowance of such claim. In each case a Disallowed Claim or a Disallowed Interest is disallowed only to the extent of disallowance, withdrawal, reclassification, expungement, subordination or estimation.

- **1.46** "Disallowed Claim" means a Claim, or any portion thereof, that is Disallowed.
- **1.47** "Disallowed Interest" means an Interest, or any portion thereof, that is Disallowed.
- **1.48** "Disbursing Agent" means the Reorganized Debtor or any Person or Persons designated by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor, in its discretion, to serve as disbursing agent under the Plan with respect to Distributions to Holders in particular Classes of Claims; which may include, without limitation, the claims agent.
- **1.49** "Disclosure Statement" means the disclosure statement for the Plan, as amended, supplemented or modified from time to time, describing the Plan, that is prepared and distributed in accordance with, among others, sections 1125, 1126(b) and 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, Bankruptcy Rule 3018 and other applicable law.
- "Disputed Claim" means (a) if no Proof of Claim has been Filed by the applicable Bar Date or has otherwise been deemed timely Filed under applicable law: (i) a Claim that is listed on the Debtor's Schedules as other than disputed, contingent or unliquidated, but as to which the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor or, prior to the Confirmation Date, any other party in interest, has Filed an objection by the Claims Objection Bar Date, and such objection has not been withdrawn or denied by a Final Order; or (ii) a Claim that is listed on the Debtor's Schedules as disputed, contingent or unliquidated; or (b) if a Proof of Claim or request for payment of an Administrative Claim has been Filed by the applicable Bar Date or has otherwise been deemed timely Filed under applicable law: (i) a Claim for which no corresponding Claim is listed on the Debtor's Schedules; (ii) a Claim for which a corresponding Claim is listed on the Debtor's Schedules as other than disputed, contingent or unliquidated, but the nature or amount of the Claim as asserted in the Proof of Claim varies from the nature and amount of such Claim as it is listed on the Schedules; (iii) a Claim for which a corresponding Claim is listed on the Debtor's Schedules as disputed, contingent or unliquidated; (iv) a Claim for which an objection has been Filed by the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor or, prior to the Confirmation Date, any other party in interest, by the Claims Objection Bar Date, and such objection has not been withdrawn or denied by a Final Order; or (v) a tort claim.
- 1.51 "Disputed Claim Amount" means (a) if a liquidated amount is set forth in the Proof of Claim relating to a Disputed Claim, (i) the liquidated amount set forth in the Proof of Claim relating to the Disputed Claim; (ii) an amount agreed to by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, and the Holder of such Disputed Claim; or (iii) if a request for estimation is Filed by any party, the amount at which such Disputed Claim is estimated by the Bankruptcy Court; (b) if no liquidated amount is set forth in the Proof of Claim relating to a Disputed Claim, (i) an amount agreed to by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, and the Holder of such Disputed Claim or (ii) the amount estimated by the Bankruptcy Court with respect to

such Disputed Claim; or (c) zero, if the Disputed Claim was listed on the Schedules as unliquidated, contingent or disputed and no Proof of Claim was Filed, or deemed to have been Filed, by the applicable Bar Date and the Claim has not been resolved by written agreement of the parties or an order of the Court.

- **1.52** "Disputed Claims Reserve" means the reserve of Cash established and maintained by the Debtor and/or the Reorganized Debtor to pay Disputed Claims upon allowance by the Bankruptcy Court.
- **1.53** "**Distribution**" means any distribution pursuant to the Plan to the Holders of Allowed Claims or Interests.
- 1.54 "Distribution Date" means, when used with respect to an Allowed Claim or an Allowed Interest, the Initial Distribution Date and any date after the Effective Date upon which a Distribution is made by the Disbursing Agent in accordance with the Plan which is the latest to occur of (a) the Initial Distribution Date; (b) the date that is ten (10) Business Days after the date after such Claim or Interest becomes an Allowed Claim or an Allowed Interest by a Final Order; or (c) the date that such Claim becomes payable under any agreement between the Debtor and the Holder of such Claim.
- **1.55** "**Distribution Record Date**" means the record date for determining entitlement to receive Distributions under the Plan on account of Allowed Claims and/or Allowed Interests.
- **1.56** "Effective Date" means any Business Day following the date on which all conditions to consummation set forth in Section 9.02 of the Plan have been satisfied or, if capable of being duly and expressly waived, as provided in Section 9.04 of the Plan, any conditions to the occurrence of consummation set forth in the Plan has been satisfied or waived.
- **1.57** "Electing Class 6 Holder" means the Holder of an Allowed Class 6 Claim validly electing in accordance with Section 3.03(d)(ii) to receive its Pro Rata share of Class 6's Ratable Portion of the sum of (x) one-hundred percent (100%) of Excess Cash; plus (y) the Common B Membership Interests; plus (z) New MIG Notes in the principal amount equal to the difference between the (a) Allowed Final Appraisal Amount and the Allowed Non-Appraisal Amount of Claims of Electing Class 6 Holders and (b) the sum of Excess Cash and the Common B Membership Equity Distribution Value.
- **1.58** "Entity" means a Person, estate, trust, governmental unit, and U.S. Trustee, within the meaning of Bankruptcy Code section 101(15).
- **1.59** "Estate" means the estate of the Debtor in the Chapter 11 Case, created pursuant to section 541 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- **1.60** "Excess Cash" means the Debtor's Cash on the day immediately preceding the Effective Date less (a) amounts and reserves necessary to make Distributions or other payments under the Plan and (b) \$5 million.
- **1.61** "Exculpated Parties" means the (a) Debtor; (b) Reorganized Debtor; and (c) each Indemnified Person.

- **1.62** "Executory Contract" means a contract to which the Debtor is a party that is subject to assumption or rejection under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- **1.63** "Exhibit Filing Date" means the date on which exhibits to the Plan or the Disclosure Statement shall be Filed with the Bankruptcy Court, which date shall be at least ten (10) days prior to the Confirmation Hearing or such later date as may be established by order of the Bankruptcy Court.
- **1.64** "Face Amount" means (a) when used in reference to a Disputed Claim, the Disputed Claim Amount and (b) when used in reference to an Allowed Claim, the Allowed Claim amount.
- **1.65** "File, Filed or Filing" means file, filed or filing with the Bankruptcy Court in the Chapter 11 Case; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that with respect to Proofs of Claim and Proofs of Interest only, "Filed" shall mean delivered and received in the manner provided in any order approving the Bar Date or the Administrative Claims Bar Date.
- **1.66 "Final Appraisal Judgment"** means a Final Order entered in connection with the Appraisal Action.
- 1.67 "Final Order" means an order, ruling, judgment, the operation or effect of a judgment or other decree issued and entered by the Bankruptcy Court or by any state or other federal court or other court of competent jurisdiction which has not been reversed, vacated, stayed, modified or amended and as to which (i) the time to appeal or petition for review, rehearing, certiorari, reargument or retrial has expired and as to which no appeal or petition for review, rehearing, certiorari, reargument or retrial is pending or (ii) any appeal or petition for review, rehearing, certiorari, reargument or retrial has been finally decided and no further appeal or petition for review, rehearing, certiorari, reargument or retrial can be taken or granted; provided, however, that the possibility that a motion under Rule 59 or Rule 60 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, or any analogous rule under the Bankruptcy Rules, may be filed with respect to such order or judgment shall not cause such order or judgment not to be a Final Order.
- **1.68** "General Unsecured Claim" means any Unsecured Claim against the Debtor that is not an Other Priority Claim or an Appraisal Claim.
- **1.69** "Georgia" means the Republic of Georgia, a country in the Caucacus region between Russia, Turkey and Azerbaijan.
- **1.70** "Holder" means the legal or beneficial holder of a Claim or Interest (and, when used in conjunction with a Class or type of Claim or Interest, means a Holder of a Claim or Interest in such Class or of such type).
- **1.71** "Hauf Secured Claims" means the portions of Claims of Mark Stephen Hauf that are Secured Claims arising out of the Separation of Employment and General Release Agreement by and between the Debtor and Mark S. Hauf, dated as of June 1, 2009.
- **1.72** "**Impaired**" means, when used with reference to a Claim or Interest, a Claim or Interest that is impaired within the meaning of section 1124 of the Bankruptcy Code.

- **1.73** "**Impaired Class**" means a Class or Claims or Interests that are Impaired.
- **1.74** "Indemnification Obligation" means any obligation of the Debtor to indemnify, reimburse, advance expenses or provide contribution to or with respect to any Indemnified Person, pursuant to by-laws, articles of incorporation, agreements, contracts, common law or otherwise as may be in existence immediately prior to the Petition Date.
- **1.75** "Indemnified Person" means all present or former officers, directors, employees, members, attorneys, actuaries, financial advisors, accountants, investment bankers, agents, professionals and representatives of the Debtor (in each case in his, her or its capacity as such).
- **1.76** "Initial Distribution Date" means, when used with respect to an Allowed Claim or an Allowed Interest, the Effective Date or as soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Date.
- **1.77** "**Insured Claim**" means any Allowed Claim or portion of an Allowed Claim (other than a secured Workers' Compensation Obligation Claim) that is insured under the Debtor's insurance policies, but only to the extent of such coverage.
- **1.78** "Intercompany Claims" means all Claims held by the Debtor (or any subsidiary or Affiliate of the Debtor) against any or all Affiliates of the Debtor, including, without limitation, all derivative Claims asserted by or on behalf of one Debtor against the other.
- 1.79 "Interest" means the legal interests, equitable interests, contractual interests, equity interests or ownership interests, or other rights of any Person in the Debtor including all capital stock, stock certificates, common stock, preferred stock, partnership interests, limited liability company or membership interests, rights, treasury stock, options, warrants, contingent warrants, convertible or exchangeable securities, investment securities, subscriptions or other agreements and contractual rights to acquire or obtain such an interest or share in the Debtor, partnership interests in the Debtor's stock appreciation rights, conversion rights, repurchase rights, redemption rights, dividend rights, preemptive rights, subscription rights and liquidation preferences, puts, calls, awards or commitments of any character whatsoever relating to any such equity, common stock, preferred stock, ownership interests or other shares of capital stock of the Debtor or obligating the Debtor to issue, transfer or sell any shares of capital stock whether or not certificated, transferable, voting or denominated "stock" or a similar security.
- 1.80 "Lien" means, with respect to any asset or Property (or the rents, revenues, income, profits or proceeds therefrom), and in each case, whether the same is consensual or nonconsensual or arises by contract, operation of law, legal process or otherwise: (a) any and all mortgages or hypothecation to secure payment of a debt or performance of an obligation, liens, pledges, attachments, charges, leases evidencing a capitalizable lease obligation, conditional sale or other title retention agreement, or other security interest or encumbrance or other legally cognizable security devices of any kind in respect of any asset or Property, or upon the rents, revenues, income, profits or proceeds therefrom; or (b) any arrangement, express or implied, under which any Property is transferred, sequestered or otherwise identified for the purpose of subjecting or making available the same for the payment of debt or performance of any other obligation in priority to the payment of general unsecured Creditors; provided, however, that a

lien that has or may be avoided pursuant to any Avoidance Action shall not constitute a lien hereunder.

- **1.81** "Litigation Rights" means the Causes of Action including the Malpractice Action that the Debtor or the Estate may hold against any Person or Entity (except to the extent expressly released under the Plan), including, without limitation, Avoidance Actions (except with respect to the Avoidance Actions, if any, waived under the Plan).
- **1.82 "Magticom"** means Magticom Ltd., a mobile telephony company located in Georgia which is wholly owned by International Telcell Cellular, LLC, a limited liability company in which MIG holds an indirect 46% membership interest.
- **1.83** "Malpractice Action" means the litigation filed by MIG against Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison, LLP, and currently pending in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 1:09-cv-05593 (GEL).
- **1.84** "Management Incentive Plan" means the management incentive award plan, as determined and approved by the New Board of the Reorganized Debtor and implemented pursuant to Section 5.07 of this Plan after the Effective Date.
- **1.85** "New Board" means the initial board of managers of the Reorganized Debtor, to be constituted as of the Effective Date pursuant to Section 5.05 of the Plan.
- **1.86 "New Common LLC Interests**" means the Common A Membership Interests and the Common B Membership Interests.
- **1.87** "New Corporate Governance Documents" means (i) the certificate of formation and the certificate of conversion of the Reorganized Debtor substantially in the form set forth in the Plan Supplement, and (ii) the Operating Agreement.
- **1.88** "New Indenture Trustee" means the Person that is the indenture trustee under the New MIG Notes Indenture.
- **1.89** "New MIG Notes" means the secured debt instruments to be issued by the Reorganized Debtor on the Distribution Date to the Holders of Class 5 Allowed Claims and the Holders of Allowed Class 6 Claims that are Electing Class 6 Holders pursuant to the New MIG Notes Indenture, certain material terms of which are described in the Disclosure Statement and substantially in the form set forth in the Plan Supplement.
- **1.90** "New MIG Notes Indenture" means the indenture, substantially in the form set forth in the Plan Supplement, to be entered into by the Reorganized Debtor and the New Indenture Trustee as of the Effective Date, pursuant to which the New MIG Notes are to be issued.
- **1.91 "New Preferred LLC Interests"** means the shares of new preferred limited liability company interests in the Reorganized Debtor to be issued by the Reorganized Debtor on the Distribution Date to Holders of Class 6 Claims (other than Electing Class 6 Holders). The New Preferred LLC Interests are represented by "Preferred Units."

- **1.92 "Non-Appraisal Claims"** means Claims against the Debtor arising from the ownership of the Preferred Equity Interests that were not part of the Appraisal Action.
- 1.93 "Operating Agreement" the limited liability company agreement of the Reorganized Debtor substantially in the form set forth in the Plan Supplement, as the same may be amended pursuant to the Plan or otherwise from time to time.
- **1.94** "Other Priority Claims" means any and all Allowed Claims accorded priority in right of payment under section 507(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, other than a Priority Tax Claim.
- "Person" means and includes a natural person, individual, partnership, corporation (as defined in section 101(a) of the Bankruptcy Code), or organization including, without limitation, corporations, limited partnerships, limited liability companies, general partnerships, joint ventures, joint stock companies, trusts, land trusts, business trusts, unincorporated organizations or associations, Committee, or ad hoc committee, or other organizations, irrespective of whether they are legal entities, governmental bodies (or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof), or any other form of legal entities; provided, however, the term "Person" does not include governmental units, except that a governmental unit that (a) acquires an asset from a Person (i) as a result of the operation of a loan guarantee agreement or (ii) as receiver or liquidating agent of a Person; (b) is a guarantor of a pension benefit payable by or on behalf of a Debtor or an Affiliate of a Debtor; or (c) is the legal or beneficial owner of an asset of (i) an employee pension benefit plan that is a governmental plan, as defined in section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or (ii) an eligible deferred compensation plan, as defined in section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, shall be considered for purposes of section 1102 of the Bankruptcy Code to be a Person with respect to such asset or such benefit.
- **1.96** "**Petition Date**" means June 18, 2009, the date on which the Debtor Filed its petition for relief commencing the Chapter 11 Case.
- **1.97** "Plan" means this plan of reorganization under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as it may be altered, amended, modified or supplemented from time to time including in accordance with any Plan Supplement and the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules.
- **1.98** "Plan Supplement" means the supplement to the Plan to be Filed as provided for herein.
- **1.99** "**Preferred Equity Interests**" means the outstanding 7.25% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock of the Debtor.
- **1.100** "**Priority Tax Claim**" means any and all Claims of a governmental unit of the kind specified in section 507(a)(8) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- **1.101** "**Professional**" means any professional employed in this Chapter 11 Case pursuant to Bankruptcy Code sections 327, 328, or 1103.

- **1.102** "**Professional Fee Claim**" means a Claim of a Professional for compensation for services rendered or reimbursement of costs, expenses, or other charges incurred after the Petition Date and on or before the Effective Date.
- **1.103** "**Professional Fee Reserve**" means the reserve of Cash established and maintained by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor to pay Allowed Professional Fee Claims.
- **1.104** "**Proof of Claim**" means a proof of claim, including, but not limited to, any Administrative Expense Request, Filed with the Bankruptcy Court or its duly appointed claims agent in connection with the Chapter 11 Case pursuant to section 501 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- **1.105** "**Proof of Interest**" means any proof of Interest Filed with the Bankruptcy Court or its duly appointed claims agent in connection with the Chapter 11 Case pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 3002.
- 1.106 "Pro Rata" means with respect to any Distribution to a Class under the Plan, the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the amount of an Allowed Claim in such Class to the aggregate amount of all Allowed Claims plus the Disputed Claim Amount of all Disputed Claims in the same Class.
- 1.107 "Ratable Portion" means, with respect to any distribution of Excess Cash, Common B Membership Interests and New MIG Notes to Holders of Allowed Class 5 Claims and the Holders of Allowed Class 6 Claims that are Electing Class 6 Holders, proportionate sharing pursuant to which the ratio of the amount distributed on account of such a Class to the amount of the sum of the distributions to Holders of Allowed Class 5 Claims and Holders of Allowed Class 6 Claims which are Electing Class 6 Holders is the same as the ratio of the total amount of all Allowed Claims in such a Class to the total aggregate amount of all Allowed Claims in Class 5 and Allowed Claims of Electing Class 6 Holders.
 - **1.108** "Releasee" has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 11.10(b) of the Plan.
- 1.109 "Reinstated" means (i) leaving unaltered the legal, equitable and contractual rights to which a Claim or Interest entitles the Holder so as to leave such Claim or Interest Unimpaired in accordance with Bankruptcy Code section 1124; or (ii) notwithstanding any contractual provision or applicable law that entitles the Holder of such Claim or Interest to demand or receive accelerated payment of such Claim or Interest after the occurrence of a default (a) curing any such default that occurred before or after the Petition Date, other than a default of a kind specified in Bankruptcy Code section 365(b)(2); (b) reinstating the maturity of such Claim or Interest as such maturity existed before such default; (c) compensating the Holder of such Claim or Interest for any damages incurred as a result of any reasonable reliance by such Holder on such contractual provision or such applicable law; and (d) not otherwise altering the legal, equitable, or contractual rights to which such Claim or Interest entitles the Holder of such Claim or Interest; provided, however, that any contractual right that does not pertain to the payment when due of principal and interest on the obligation on which such Claim or Interest is based, including, but not limited to, financial covenant ratios, negative pledge covenants, covenants or restrictions on merger or consolidation and affirmative covenants regarding corporate existence prohibiting certain transactions or actions contemplated by the Plan, or

conditioning such transactions or actions on certain factors, shall not be required to be reinstated in order to accomplish reinstatement.

- **1.110** "Reorganized Debtor" means the Debtor as reorganized upon the Effective Date pursuant to this Plan.
- 1.111 "Schedules" means the schedules of assets and liabilities, schedules of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases and statements of financial affairs Filed by the Debtor pursuant to section 521 of the Bankruptcy Code and in substantial accordance with the Official Bankruptcy Forms, as the same may have been amended, modified or supplemented from time to time.
- 1.112 "Secured Claim" means a Claim that is secured by a Lien which is not subject to avoidance under the Bankruptcy Code or otherwise invalid under the Bankruptcy Code or applicable state law, on property in which the Estate has an interest, or a Claim that is subject to setoff under section 553 of the Bankruptcy Code; to the extent of the value of the Holder's interest in the Estate's interest in such property or to the extent of the amount subject to setoff, as applicable; as determined by a Final Order pursuant to section 506(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, or in the case of setoff, pursuant to section 553 of the Bankruptcy Code, or in either case as otherwise agreed upon in writing by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor and the Holder of such Claim. The amount of any Claim that exceeds the value of the Holder's interest in the Estate's interest in property or the amount subject to setoff shall be treated as a General Unsecured Claim.
- **1.113** "Secured Tax Claim" means a Claim of a governmental unit for the payment of a tax assessed against property of the Estate that is secured by a first Lien on property of the Estate.
- **1.114** "Secured Workers' Compensation Obligations" means Claims arising out of and related to workers' compensation asserted by former employees of the Debtor.
 - **1.115** "Solicitation Procedures Order" means [**] [Docket No. ¶]
- **1.116** "Unexpired Lease" means a lease of non-residential real property to which the Debtor is a party that is subject to assumption or rejection under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - **1.117** "Unimpaired" means Claims in an Unimpaired Class.
- **1.118** "Unimpaired Class" means an unimpaired Class within the meaning of section 1124 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- **1.119** "Unknown Contract" has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 6.08(b) of the Plan.
- **1.120** "Unsecured Claim" means a Claim arising prior to the Petition Date against the Debtor that is neither a Secured Claim nor entitled to priority under section 507 of the

Bankruptcy Code or any order of the Bankruptcy Court, which Claim may be a General Unsecured Claim.

- **1.121** "U.S. Trustee" means the Office of the United States Trustee for the District of Delaware.
- **1.122** "Value" means the value of the New Common LLC Interests, which shall be fixed for purposes of the Plan at the amount set forth in the Plan Supplement.
- **1.123** "Voting Deadline" means [*****], 2010 at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, the date and time by which all Ballots to accept or reject the Plan must be received in order to be counted, as set forth by the Solicitation Procedures Order.

ARTICLE II:

CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS

Section 2.01 Introduction

- (a) All Claims and Interests, except Administrative Claims and Priority Tax Claims, are placed in the Classes set forth below. In accordance with Bankruptcy Code section 1123(a)(1), Administrative Claims and Priority Tax Claims have not been classified, and the respective treatment of such unclassified Claims is set forth below in Section 3.01 of the Plan.
- (b) A Claim or Interest is placed in a particular Class only to the extent that the Claim or Interest falls within the description of that Class, and is classified in other Classes to the extent that any portion of the Claim or Interest falls within the description of such other Classes. A Claim is also placed in a particular Class for the purpose of receiving Distributions pursuant to the Plan only to the extent that such Claim is an Allowed Claim in that Class and such Claim has not been paid, released, or otherwise settled prior to the Effective Date.

Section 2.02 Unclassified Claims (not entitled to vote on the Plan)

- (a) Administrative Claims
- (b) Priority Tax Claims

Section 2.03 Unimpaired Classes of Claims and Interests (deemed to have accepted the Plan and, therefore, not entitled to vote on the Plan)

- (a) Class 1. Other Priority Claims
- (b) Class 2. Secured Workers' Compensation Obligations Claims

Section 2.04 Impaired/Voting Classes of Claims

- (a) Class 3. Hauf Secured Claims
- (b) Class 4. General Unsecured Claims
- (c) Class 5. Appraisal Claims
- (d) Class 6. Non-Appraisal Claims
- (e) Class 7. Common Equity Interests

ARTICLE III:

TREATMENT OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS

Section 3.01 Unclassified Claims

(a) Administrative Claims

Except to the extent that an Allowed Administrative Claim has been paid prior to the Initial Distribution Date, and except as otherwise provided for herein (including Section 11.02 with respect to Professional Fee Claims), each Holder of an Administrative Claim shall be entitled to receive in full and complete settlement, release, and discharge of such Claim, payment in full in Cash of the unpaid portion of an Allowed Administrative Claim on the Distribution Date.

(b) Priority Tax Claims

Except to the extent that an Allowed Priority Tax Claim has been paid prior to the Initial Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed Priority Tax Claim shall be entitled to receive in full and complete settlement, release, and discharge of such Claim, payment in Cash of the unpaid portion of an Allowed Priority Tax Claim on the Distribution Date.

Section 3.02 Unimpaired Classes of Claims and Interests

(a) Class 1: Other Priority Claims

<u>Classification</u>: Class 1 consists of Other Priority Claims against the Debtor.

Treatment: The legal, equitable and contractual rights of the Holders of Allowed Class 1 Claims will be unaltered by the Plan. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Holders of the Allowed Class 1 Claims and the Debtor, each Holder of an Allowed Class 1 Claim shall receive in full, final and complete satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of such Allowed Class 1 Claim, payment of the Allowed Class 1 Claim in full in Cash on the Distribution Date; provided, however, that, notwithstanding any contract provision or applicable law that entitles a

holder of an Allowed Class 1 Claim to postpetition interest, no Allowed Class 1 Claim shall receive postpetition interest on account of such Claim.

<u>Voting</u>: Class 1 is Unimpaired, and the Holders of Class 1 Claims will be conclusively deemed to have accepted the Plan pursuant to section 1126(f) of the Bankruptcy Code. Therefore, the Holders of Class 1 Claims will not be entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

(b) Class 2: Secured Workers' Compensation Obligations Claims

<u>Classification</u>: Class 2 consists of Secured Workers' Compensation Obligations Claims against the Debtor.

Treatment: Each Holder of an Allowed Class 2 Claim shall have its Claim Reinstated and shall receive, in full, final and complete satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of such Allowed Class 2 Claim and on account of its Allowed Class 2 Claim, Cash payments in the ordinary course as set forth in the Order Authorizing the Debtor to Pay Certain Pre-Petition Workers' Compensation Obligations in the Ordinary Course of Business Pursuant to Sections 105(a) and 363 of the Bankruptcy Code [Docket No. 97].

<u>Voting</u>: Class 2 is Unimpaired, and the Holders of Class 2 Claims will be conclusively deemed to have accepted the Plan pursuant to section 1126(f) of the Bankruptcy Code. Therefore, the Holders of Class 2 Claims will not be entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

Section 3.03 Impaired/Voting Classes of Claims and Interests

(a) Class 3: Hauf Secured Claims

Classification: Class 3 consists of the Hauf Secured Claims.

<u>Treatment</u>: The Class 3 Claim shall be Allowed in the amount of \$607,500 and shall be paid in Cash on the Distribution Date, in full, final and complete satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of such Allowed Class 3 Claim; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that, notwithstanding any contract provision or applicable law that entitles the Holder of the Allowed Class 3 Claim to interest, no Allowed Class 3 Claim shall receive postpetition interest on account of such Claim.

<u>Voting</u>: Class 3 is Impaired, and the Holder of the Class 3 Claim will be entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

Allowance: The Class 3 Claims shall be Allowed in the amount of \$607,500 (which is 90% of the total Class 3 Claims).

(b) Class 4: General Unsecured Claims

<u>Classification</u>: Class 4 consists of General Unsecured Claims against the Debtor.

<u>Treatment</u>: Each Holder of an Allowed Class 4 Claim shall be paid in Cash on the Distribution Date, seventy percent (70%) of the Allowed amount of its Class 4 Claim.

<u>Voting</u>: Class 4 is Impaired, and the Holders of Class 4 Claims will be entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

(c) Class 5: Appraisal Claims

<u>Classification</u>: Class 5 consists of the Appraisal Claims against the Debtor.

Treatment: On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed Class 5 Claim shall receive, in full, final and complete satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of such Allowed Class 5 Claim its Pro Rata share of Class 5's Ratable Portion of the sum of (x) one-hundred percent (100%) of Excess Cash; plus (y) the Common B Membership Interests; plus (z) New MIG Notes in the principal amount equal to the difference between the (a) Allowed Final Appraisal Amount and the Allowed Non-Appraisal Amount of Claims of Electing Class 6 Holders and (b) the sum of Excess Cash and the Common B Membership Equity Distribution Value.

<u>Voting</u>: Class 5 is Impaired, and the Holders of Class 5 Claims will be entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

Allowance: Class 5 Claims shall be Allowed in the amount of the Allowed Final Appraisal Amount.

(d) Class 6: Non-Appraisal Claims

Classification: Class 6 consists of all Non-Appraisal Claims in the Debtor.

<u>Treatment</u>: On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed Class 6 Claim shall be entitled to elect to receive, in full, final and complete satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of such Allowed Class 6 Claim, one of the following forms of treatment under the Plan:

- (i) one Preferred Unit per share of Preferred Equity Interest held by such Holder of an Allowed Class 6 Claim; or
- (ii) its Pro Rata share of Class 6's Ratable Portion of the sum of (x) one-hundred percent (100%) of Excess Cash; <u>plus</u> (y) the Common B Membership Interests; <u>plus</u> (z) New MIG Notes in the principal amount equal to the difference between the (a) Allowed Final Appraisal Amount and the Allowed Non-Appraisal Amount of Claims of Electing Class 6 Holders and (b) the sum of Excess Cash and the Common B

Membership Equity Distribution Value; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the Holder of an Allowed Class 6 Claim makes the written election provided for in this Section 3.03(d)(ii) on a validly executed Ballot that is delivered on or before the Voting Deadline. Holders of Allowed Class 6 Claims that do not properly and timely make this written election shall be treated in accordance with Section 3.03(d)(i) of the Plan.

<u>Voting</u>: Class 6 is Impaired, and Holders of Class 6 Claims will be entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

Allowance: Class 6 Claims shall be Allowed in the amount of the Allowed Non-Appraisal Amount.

(e) Class 7: Common Equity Interests

<u>Classification</u>: Class 7 consists of all Common Equity Interests in the Debtor.

<u>Treatment</u>: Each Holder of an Allowed Class 7 Interest shall receive their Pro Rata share of Common A Membership Interests.

<u>Voting</u>: Class 7 is Impaired, and the Holders of Class 7 Claims will be entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

Section 3.04 Special Provisions Regarding Insured Claims

- (a) Distributions under the Plan to each holder of an Insured Claim shall be in accordance with the treatment provided under the Plan for General Unsecured Claims; provided, however, that the maximum amount of any Distribution under the Plan on account of an Allowed Insured Claim shall be limited to an amount equal to the applicable self-insured retention under the relevant insurance policy; provided further, however, that, to the extent a Holder has an Allowed Insured Claim, the amount of which exceeds the total coverage available from the relevant insurance policies of the Debtor, such Holder shall have an Allowed General Unsecured Claim in the amount by which such Allowed Insured Claim exceeds the coverage available from the Debtor's insurance policies. Nothing in this section shall constitute a waiver of any Litigation Rights the Debtor may hold against any Person, including the Debtor' insurance carriers; and nothing in this section is intended to, shall, or shall be deemed to preclude any Holder of an Allowed Insured Claim from seeking and/or obtaining a Distribution or other recovery from any insurer of the Debtor in addition to (but not in duplication of) any Distribution such Holder may receive under the Plan; provided, however, that the Debtor does not waive, and expressly reserve its rights to assert that any insurance coverage is property of the Estates to which it is entitled.
- (b) The Plan shall not expand the scope of, or alter in any other way, the rights and obligations of the Debtor's insurers under their policies, and the Debtor's insurers shall retain any and all defenses to coverage that such insurers may have, including the right to contest and/or litigate with any party, including the Debtor, the existence, primacy and/or scope of available coverage under any alleged applicable policy. The Plan shall not operate as a waiver of

any other Claims the Debtor's insurers have asserted or may assert in any Proof of Claim or the Debtor's rights and defenses to such Proofs of Claim.

Section 3.05 Reservation of Rights Regarding Claims

Except as otherwise explicitly provided in the Plan, nothing herein shall affect the Debtor's or the Reorganized Debtor's rights and defenses, both legal and equitable, with respect to any Claims, including, but not limited to, all rights with respect to legal and equitable defenses to alleged rights of setoff or recoupment.

ARTICLE IV:

ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF THE PLAN

Section 4.01 Impaired Classes of Claims Entitled to Vote

Holders of Allowed Claims and Interests in each Impaired Class of Claims or Interests are entitled to vote as a Class to accept or reject the Plan. Accordingly, only the votes of Holders of Claims in Classes 3 through 7 shall be solicited with respect to the Plan.

Section 4.02 Acceptance by an Impaired Class

In accordance with section 1126(c) of the Bankruptcy Code, and except as provided in section 1126(e) of the Bankruptcy Code, an Impaired Class of Claims shall have accepted the Plan if the Plan is accepted by the Holders of at least two-thirds (2/3) in dollar amount and more than one-half (1/2) in number of the Allowed Claims in such Class that have timely and properly voted to accept or reject the Plan.

Section 4.03 Presumed Acceptances by Unimpaired Classes

Class 1 and Class 2 are Unimpaired under the Plan. Under section 1126(f) of the Bankruptcy Code, Holders of such Unimpaired Claims are conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan, and the votes of Holders of such Unimpaired Claims shall not be solicited.

Section 4.04 Confirmation Pursuant to Section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code

To the extent that any Impaired Class rejects the Plan or is deemed to have rejected the Plan, the Debtor reserves its rights to request Confirmation of the Plan, as it may be modified from time to time, under section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code. The Debtor reserves the right to alter, amend, modify, revoke, or withdraw the Plan, the Plan Supplement, or any schedule or exhibit, including to amend or modify it to satisfy the requirements of section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, if necessary.

Section 4.05 Elimination of Vacant Classes

Any Class of Claims or Interests that does not contain, as of the date of the commencement of the Confirmation Hearing, a Holder of an Allowed Claim or Interest, or a Holder of a Claim temporarily allowed under Bankruptcy Rule 3018, shall be deemed deleted from the Plan for all purposes, including for purposes of determining acceptance of the Plan by such Class under section 1129(a)(8) of the Bankruptcy Code.

ARTICLE V:

MEANS FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN

Section 5.01 Continued Corporate Existence

After the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor may operate its business and use, acquire, dispose of property and settle and compromise claims or interests without the supervision of the Bankruptcy Court, free of any restrictions of the Bankruptcy Code or Bankruptcy Rules.

Section 5.02 Corporate Governance

Subject to any requirement of Bankruptcy Court approval pursuant to section 1129(a)(5) of the Bankruptcy Code, on the Effective Date, the New Board will be constituted in the manner set forth in Section 5.05 below and the managers and officers of the Reorganized Debtor will be as set forth in Section 5.06 below. Each such manager and officer will serve from and after the Effective Date in accordance with the terms of the Operating Agreement and/or other governance policies of the Reorganized Debtor, as the same may be amended from time to time, pursuant to applicable state law.

The New Corporate Governance Documents shall be amended as necessary to satisfy the provisions of this Plan and the Bankruptcy Code and shall include, among other things, pursuant to section 1123(a)(6) of the Bankruptcy Code, a provision prohibiting the issuance of non-voting equity securities, but only to the extent required by section 1123(a)(6) of the Bankruptcy Code.

The New Corporate Governance Documents shall (a) include manager liability exculpation, indemnity and advancement provisions to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, and (b) satisfy the provisions of the Plan and the Bankruptcy Code. After the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor may amend and restate the New Corporate Governance Documents and any other certificates or articles of incorporation, by-laws, limited liability company agreements, certificates of formation, partnership agreements and certificates of partnership, as applicable, as permitted by applicable law.

Section 5.03 Cancellation of Common Equity Interests and Agreement

Except as otherwise provided for herein, or in any contract, instrument or other agreement or document created in connection with the Plan, on the Effective Date and concurrently with the applicable Distributions made pursuant to Article III hereof, the Common Equity Interests, the Preferred Equity Interests and any other promissory notes, share certificates, whether for preferred or common stock (including treasury stock), other instruments evidencing any Claims or Interests, other than a Claim that is being Reinstated and rendered Unimpaired, and all options, warrants, calls, rights, puts, awards, commitments or any other agreements of any character to acquire such Interests shall be deemed canceled and of no further force and effect, without any further act or action under any applicable agreement, law, regulation, order or rule, and the obligations of the Debtor under the notes, share certificates and other agreements and instruments governing such Claims and Interests shall be discharged. The Holders of or parties to such canceled notes, shares, share certificates and other agreements and instruments shall have no rights arising from or relating to such notes, shares, share certificates and other agreements and instruments or the cancellation thereof, except the rights provided pursuant to the Plan.

Section 5.04 Authorization and Issuance of New Common LLC Interests and New Preferred LLC Interests

- (a) On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor shall be authorized to issue and deliver (i) the New Common LLC Interests; (ii) the requisite New Preferred LLC Interests; and (iii) the New MIG Notes.
- (d) The issuance of the New Common LLC Interests, New Preferred LLC Interests and New MIG Notes and all other instruments, certificates and other documents required to be issued or distributed pursuant to the Plan shall be authorized under section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code as of the Effective Date without further act or action, except as may be required by the New Corporate Governance Documents, or applicable law, regulation, order or rule; and all documents evidencing same shall be executed and delivered as provided for in the Plan or the Plan Supplement.

Section 5.05 New Board of Managers of the Reorganized Debtor

Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, the Holders of Allowed Class 5 Claims, the Holders of Allowed Class 6 Claims and the Holders of Allowed Class 7 Interests shall, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, be required to take any and all actions, including without limitation, voting their New Common LLC Interests and/or New Preferred LLC Interests to cause the Reorganized Debtor's board of managers to consist of six (6) members to be elected and appointed as follows: (a) the Holders of Allowed Class 5 Claims, the Holders of Allowed Class 7 Interests and the Holders of Allowed Class 6 Claims that are Electing Class 6 Holders, voting together as a single class, shall be entitled to elect four (4) managers of the Reorganized Debtor, and (b) as long as there are New Preferred LLC Interests outstanding, the Holders of Allowed Class 6 Claims shall be entitled to elect up to two (2) managers of the Reorganized Debtor. The initial members of the New Board shall serve from the Effective Date and thereafter

in accordance with the New Corporate Governance Documents. The Reorganized Debtor shall permit the Appraisal Claims Representative to attend and observe all meetings of the New Board of the Reorganized Debtor; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the Appraisal Claims Representative shall be recused and shall not participate in any discussions by the New Board related to the Appraisal Action and any appeal, litigation strategy or any other matter protected by the attorney-client, work-product or privilege.

The intended members of the New Board as of the Effective Date shall be the persons identified in the Plan Supplement.

Section 5.06 Managers, Officers and Key Employees of Reorganized Debtor; Indemnification

- (a) The initial officers and managers of the Reorganized Debtor shall be disclosed in the Plan Supplement.
- (b) Upon the Effective Date, the New Corporate Governance Documents of the Reorganized Debtor shall contain provisions which (i) eliminate the personal liability of the Debtor's and the Reorganized Debtor's then present and future managers, directors and officers for post-emergence monetary damages resulting from breaches of their fiduciary duties on or after the Effective Date to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law in the state in which the subject Reorganized Debtor is organized; and (ii) require such Reorganized Debtor, subject to appropriate procedures, to indemnify and advance expenses to the Debtor's and the Reorganized Debtor's managers, directors, officers, and other key employees (as such key employees are identified by the Chief Executive Officer of the Reorganized Debtor and the New Board) serving on or after the Effective Date for all claims and actions relating to post-Petition Date service to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law in the state in which the subject Reorganized Debtor is organized.
- (c) All indemnification provisions currently in place (whether in the by-laws, certificates of incorporation, or advancement, board resolutions, agreements or employment contracts) for the directors of the Debtor who were in place as of the Petition Date and current officers, employees, attorneys, other professionals and agents of the Debtor shall be assumed, and shall survive effectiveness of the Plan. All indemnification or advancement provisions in place on and prior to the Effective Date for current directors and officers of the Debtor and its subsidiaries and such current and former directors and officers' respective Debtor's Affiliates shall survive the Effective Date for Claims related to or in connection with any actions, omissions or transactions occurring prior to the Effective Date.
- (d) Upon and after the Effective Date, and for six (6) years thereafter, the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor, as the case may be, shall obtain reasonably sufficient tail coverage under a director and officer liability insurance policy for the current and former directors and officers of the Reorganized Debtor and its Affiliates. As of the Effective Date, the Debtor shall assume all obligations owing under the director and officer insurance policies pursuant to section 365(a) of the Bankruptcy Code. Entry of the Confirmation Order will constitute the Bankruptcy Court's approval of the Debtor's foregoing assumption of each of the director and officer liability insurance policies. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Plan,

Confirmation of the Plan shall not discharge, impair or otherwise modify any indemnity or advancement obligations assumed by the foregoing assumption of the director and officer liability insurance policies, and each such indemnity or advancement obligation will be deemed and treated as an Executory Contract that has been assumed by the Debtor under the Plan as to which no Proof of Claim need be Filed.

Section 5.07 Management Incentive Plan

On or after the Effective Date, the New Board of the Reorganized Debtor shall develop, approve and implement the terms and the conditions of the Management Incentive Plan (including the identity of the participants and the number of shares to be granted). The compensation, cash bonus targets, and severance policies shall remain those that were effective as of December 31, 2008, subject to the continued approval of the New Board. On and after the Effective Date, eligible persons who receive awards under such Management Incentive Plan shall be entitled to the benefits thereof on the terms and conditions provided for therein. As of the Effective Date, all equity-based awards granted by the Debtor prior to the Petition Date shall terminate and cease to be binding on the Debtor.

Section 5.08 Revesting of Assets; Preservation of Causes of Action, Litigation Rights and Avoidance Actions; Release of Liens

Except as otherwise provided herein, or in the Confirmation Order, and pursuant to section 1123(b)(3) and section 1141(b) and (c) of the Bankruptcy Code, on the Effective Date, all of the property and assets of the Debtor and all Causes of Action, Litigation Rights and Avoidance Actions shall automatically revest in the Reorganized Debtor, free and clear of all Claims, Liens and Interests. The Reorganized Debtor (directly or through the Disbursing Agent) shall make all Distributions under the Plan. Thereafter, each Reorganized Debtor may operate its business and may use, acquire, and dispose of such property free of any restrictions of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, and the Bankruptcy Court. As of the Effective Date, all such property of each Reorganized Debtor shall be free and clear of all Claims, Liens and Interests, except as specifically provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order and the Reorganized Debtor shall receive the benefit of any and all discharges under the Plan.

Section 5.09 Restructuring Transactions

On, as of, or after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor may enter into such transactions and may take such actions as may be necessary or appropriate, in accordance with any applicable state law, to effect a corporate or operational restructuring of its business, to otherwise simplify the overall corporate or operational structure of the Reorganized Debtor, to achieve corporate or operational efficiencies, or to otherwise improve financial results; provided that such transactions or actions are not otherwise inconsistent with the Plan, the Distributions to be made under the Plan or the New Corporate Governance Documents. Such transactions or actions may include any mergers, conversions, consolidations, restructurings, dispositions, liquidations, closures, or dissolutions, as may be determined by the Reorganized Debtor to be necessary or appropriate.

On the Effective Date, the following transactions will occur:

- (a) The Reorganized Debtor will be formed as a limited liability company organized under Delaware law on or before the Effective Date.
- (b) The Reorganized Debtor will issue and deliver: (i) the New MIG Notes and Common B Membership Interests in accordance with Sections 3.03(c) and 3.03(d)(ii) of the Plan; (ii) the New Preferred LLC Interests in accordance with Section 3.03(d)(i) of the Plan; and (iii) Common A Membership Interests in accordance with Section 3.03(e) of the Plan.
- (b) The Reorganized Debtor shall cause the dissolution of MIG Telecommunications, Inc. and MIG Georgia Holdings, Inc. such that the Reorganized Debtor will own 100% of the membership or limited liability company interests in ITC Cellular LLC, International Telcell Cellular LLC and Telcell Wireless LLC.
- (c) Certain entities owned by the Debtor (a) may be merged with and into the Reorganized Debtor or (b) may be dissolved.

Section 5.10 Preservation of Rights of Action; Resulting Claim Treatment

- (a) Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or in any contract, instrument, release or other agreement entered into or delivered in connection with the Plan, in accordance with section 1123(b) of the Bankruptcy Code and to the fullest extent possible under applicable law, on the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor shall retain and may enforce, and shall have the sole right to enforce or prosecute, any claims, demands, rights and Causes of Action that the Debtor may hold against any Entity, including all Avoidance Actions. The Reorganized Debtor or its successor may pursue such retained claims, demands, rights or Causes of Action or Avoidance Actions, as appropriate, in accordance with the best interests of the Reorganized Debtor or its successor holding such claims, demands, rights, Causes of Action or Avoidance Actions.
- (b) If, as a result of the pursuit of any Litigation Rights or Avoidance Actions, a Claim would arise from a recovery pursuant to section 550 of the Bankruptcy Code after Distributions under the Plan have commenced, making it impracticable to treat the Claim in accordance with the applicable provisions of Article VII of the Plan, the Reorganized Debtor shall be permitted to reduce the recovery by an amount that reflects the value of the treatment that would have been accorded to the Claim under the Plan, thereby effectively treating the Claim through the reduction.

Section 5.11 Effectuating Documents; Further Transactions

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, or any other appropriate officer of the Reorganized Debtor shall be authorized to execute, deliver, file, or record such contracts, instruments, releases, indentures, and other agreements or documents, and take such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate and further evidence the terms and conditions of the Plan. In addition, and without limitation of the foregoing, the Secretary or

Assistant Secretary of the Reorganized Debtor shall be authorized to certify or attest to any of the foregoing actions.

Section 5.12 Exemption from Certain Transfer Taxes

Pursuant to section 1146(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, the issuance, transfer, or exchange of a security, or the making or delivery of an instrument of transfer from the Debtor to the Reorganized Debtor or any other Person or Entity pursuant to this Plan, the granting or recording of any Lien or mortgage on any property under the Exit Facility, shall not be subject to any document recording tax, stamp tax, conveyance fee, intangibles or similar tax, mortgage tax, stamp act, real estate transfer tax, mortgage recording tax, or other similar tax or governmental assessment. State or local governmental officials or agents are directed to forego the collection of any such tax or governmental assessment and to accept for Filing and recordation any of the foregoing instruments or other documents without the payment of any such tax or governmental assessment.

Section 5.13 Corporate Action

On the Effective Date, the adoption and Filing of the New Corporate Governance Documents, the appointment of managers and/or officers of the Reorganized Debtor, and all actions contemplated hereby shall be authorized and approved in all respects pursuant to the Plan. All matters provided for herein involving the corporate structure of the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor, and any corporate action required by the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor in connection with the Plan, shall be deemed to have occurred and shall be in effect, without any requirement of further action by the directors, stockholders, members or managers of the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor. On the Effective Date, and pursuant to Section 303 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, the appropriate officers or managers of the Reorganized Debtor are authorized and directed to issue, execute, and deliver the agreements, documents, securities, and instruments contemplated by the Plan in the name of and on behalf of the Reorganized Debtor without the need for any required approvals, authorizations, or consents, except for any express consents required under the Plan.

Section 5.14 Reorganized Debtor's Obligations Under the Plan

From and after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor shall exercise its reasonable discretion and business judgment to perform the corresponding obligations under the Plan of its predecessor or predecessor-in-interest. The Plan will be administered and actions will be taken in the name of the Debtor and the Reorganized Debtor. From and after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor shall conduct, among other things, the following tasks:

- (a) administer the Plan and take all steps and execute all instruments and documents necessary to effectuate the Plan;
- (b) pursue (including, as it determines through the exercise of its business judgment, prosecuting, enforcing, objecting to, litigating, reconciling, settling, abandoning, and

resolving) all of the rights, Claims, Causes of Action, defenses, and counterclaims retained by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor;

- (c) reconcile Claims and resolve Disputed Claims, and administer the Claims allowance and disallowance processes as set forth in the Plan, including objecting to, prosecuting, litigating, reconciling, settling, and resolving Claims and Disputed Claims in accordance with the Plan;
- (d) make decisions regarding the retention, engagement, payment, and replacement of professionals, employees and consultants;
- (e) administer the Distributions under the Plan, including (i) making Distributions in accordance with the terms of the Plan, and (ii) Filing with the Bankruptcy Court on each six (6)-month anniversary of the Effective Date reports regarding the Distributions made and to be made to the Holders of Allowed Claims;
- (f) exercise such other powers as necessary or prudent to carry out the provisions of the Plan;
 - (g) file appropriate tax returns; and
- (h) take such other action as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate the Plan.

Section 5.15 Transactions on Business Days

If the date on which a transaction may occur under this Plan shall occur on a day that is not a Business Day, then such transaction shall instead occur on the next succeeding Business Day.

ARTICLE VI:

TREATMENT OF EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES

Section 6.01 Assumption of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases

Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, or in any contract, instrument, release, indenture, or other agreement or document entered into in connection with the Plan, as of the Effective Date, the Debtor shall be deemed to have assumed each pre-petition written Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease to which it is a party unless such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease (a) was previously assumed or rejected upon motion by a Final Order, (b) previously expired or terminated pursuant to its own terms, (c) is listed on the Schedule of rejected contracts and leases to be provided with the Plan Supplement, or (d) is the subject of any pending motion, including to assume, to assume on modified terms, to reject or to make any other disposition Filed by the Debtor on or before the Confirmation Date. The Confirmation Order shall constitute an order of the Bankruptcy Court under section 365(a) of the Bankruptcy

Code approving the assumption and/or assignment of pre-petition Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases described above, as of the Effective Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Debtor and the Reorganized Debtor reserve the right to assert that any license, franchise and partially performed contract is a property right and not an Executory Contract. Contracts or leases entered into after the Petition Date will be performed by the Reorganized Debtor in the ordinary course of business.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any contract, agreement or lease to which the Reorganized Debtor is a party, (a) the transactions contemplated by the Plan and (b) the consequences of the Plan's implementation shall not trigger any change in control or similar provisions and shall not be voided by any restraints against assignment in any contract, agreement or lease governed by the Plan. The Confirmation Order shall constitute an order of the Bankruptcy Court approving all such assumption and assignments and rejections pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.

Section 6.02 Assignment of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases

To the extent provided under the Bankruptcy Code or other applicable law, any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease transferred and assigned pursuant to this Plan shall remain in full force and effect for the benefit of the transferee or assignee in accordance with its terms, notwithstanding any provision in such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease (including those of the type described in section 365(b)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code) that prohibits, restricts or conditions such transfer or assignment. To the extent provided under the Bankruptcy Code or other applicable law, any provision that prohibits, restricts or conditions the assignment or transfer of any such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease or that terminates or modifies such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to terminate, modify, recapture, impose any penalty, condition renewal or extension or modify any term or condition upon any such transfer and assignment constitutes an unenforceable anti-assignment provision and is void and of no force or effect.

Section 6.03 Cure Rights for Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Assumed Under Plan

Any monetary amounts by which each Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease to be assumed pursuant to the Plan is in default shall be satisfied, under section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, by Cure. If there is a dispute regarding (a) the nature or amount of any Cure, (b) the ability of any Reorganized Debtor or any assignee to provide "adequate assurance of future performance" (within the meaning of section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code) under the contract or lease to be assumed, or (c) any other matter pertaining to assumption, Cure shall occur following the entry of a Final Order by the Bankruptcy Court resolving the dispute and approving the assumption or assumption and assignment, as the case may be; provided, however, that the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, shall be authorized to reject any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to the extent the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor, in the exercise of its sound business judgment, concludes that the amount of the Cure obligation as determined by such Final Order, renders assumption of such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease unfavorable to the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor. Cure amounts are listed in the Plan

Supplement, which shall be Filed at least ten (10) days prior to the Confirmation Hearing as part of the Plan Supplement. If no Cure amount for an assumed Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease is listed in the Plan Supplement, the Cure amount shall be deemed to be \$0.

Section 6.04 Rejection Damages Bar Date for Rejections Pursuant to Plan

If the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease pursuant to the Plan results in a Claim, then such Claim shall be forever barred and shall not be enforceable against the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor or any of its properties unless a Proof of Claim is Filed with the claims agent and served upon counsel to the Reorganized Debtor within thirty (30) days after entry of the Confirmation Order. The foregoing applies only to Claims arising from the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease; any other Claims held by a party to a rejected contract or lease shall have been evidenced by a Proof of Claim Filed by earlier applicable Bar Dates or shall be barred and unenforceable.

Section 6.05 Rejection of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases

The contracts and leases set forth in the Plan Supplement shall be deemed rejected as of the Effective Date. The Debtor reserves the right, at any time prior to the Effective Date, except as otherwise specifically provided in the Plan, to seek to reject any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to which the Debtor is a party and to File a motion requesting authorization for the rejection of any such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease.

Section 6.06 Certain Indemnification Obligations Owed by Debtor

- (a) Indemnification Obligations owed to directors, officers, and employees of the Debtor (or the Estate) who served or were employed by the Debtor as of and after the Petition Date, excluding (i) claims resulting from gross negligence, willful misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty, self-interested transactions or intentional tort and (ii) claims arising from actions, events or circumstances prior to the Petition Date, shall be deemed to be, and shall be treated as though they are, Executory Contracts that are assumed pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code and Section 6.01 of the Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Reorganized Debtor shall not assume any claim for liability, reimbursement obligations, contributions or indemnity concerning the contractual obligations of directors or officers of the Debtor, including, without limitation, the contractual guaranties.
- (b) All Indemnification Obligations owed to directors, officers, and employees of the Debtor who served or were employed by the Debtor on or prior to, but not after, the Petition Date shall be deemed to be, and shall be treated as though they are, Executory Contracts that are rejected pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code under the Plan.
- (c) Indemnification Obligations owed to any Professionals retained pursuant to sections 327 or 328 of the Bankruptcy Code and order of the Bankruptcy Court, to the extent that such Indemnification Obligations relate to the period after the Petition Date, excluding claims resulting from gross negligence, willful misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty, self-interested transactions or intentional tort, shall be deemed to be, and shall be treated as though they are,

Executory Contracts that are assumed pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code and Section 6.01 of the Plan.

Section 6.07 Continuing Obligations Owed to Debtor

- (a) Any confidentiality agreement entered into between the Debtor and any other Person requiring the parties to maintain the confidentiality of each other's proprietary information shall be deemed to be, and shall be treated as though it is, an Executory Contract that is assumed and assigned pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code and Section 6.01 of the Plan.
- (b) Any indemnity agreement entered into between the Debtor and any other Person requiring the supplier to provide insurance in favor of the Debtor, to warrant or guarantee such supplier's goods or services, or to indemnify the Debtor for claims arising from the goods or services shall be deemed to be, and shall be treated as though it is, an Executory Contract that is assumed and assigned pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code and Section 6.01 of the Plan; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that if any party thereto asserts any Cure, at the election of the Debtor such agreement shall not be deemed assumed, and shall instead be rejected pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code under the Plan.
- (c) Continuing obligations of third parties to the Debtor under insurance policies, contracts, or leases that have otherwise ceased to be executory or have otherwise expired on or prior to the Effective Date, including, without limitation, continuing obligations to pay insured claims, to defend against and process claims, to refund premiums or overpayments, to provide indemnification, contribution or reimbursement, to grant rights of first refusal, to maintain confidentiality, or to honor releases, shall continue and shall be binding on such third parties notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in the Plan, unless otherwise specifically terminated by the Debtor or by order of Bankruptcy Court.
- (d) To the extent any insurance policy under which the insurer has a continuing obligation to pay the Debtor or a third party on behalf of the Debtor is held by the Bankruptcy Court to be an Executory Contract, such insurance policy shall be treated as though it is an Executory Contract that is assumed pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code and Section 6.01 of the Plan. Any and all Claims (including Cure) arising under or related to any insurance policies or related insurance agreements that are assumed by the Debtor prior to or as of the Effective Date: (i) shall not be discharged; (ii) shall be Allowed Administrative Claims; and (iii) shall be paid in full in the ordinary course of business of the Reorganized Debtor as set forth in Section 3.01(b) of the Plan.

Section 6.08 Limited Extension of Time to Assume or Reject

(a) In the event of a dispute as to whether a contract or lease is executory or unexpired, the right of the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor to move to assume or reject such contract or lease shall be extended until the date that is thirty (30) days after entry of a Final Order by the Bankruptcy Court determining that the contract or lease is executory or unexpired.

(b) In the event the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor becomes aware after the Confirmation Date of the existence of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that was not included in the Schedules, the right of the Reorganized Debtor to move to assume or reject such contract or lease shall be extended until the date that is thirty (30) days after the date on which the Reorganized Debtor receives written notice of the existence and terms of such contract or lease (an "Unknown Contract"). Such Unknown Contract may be assumed or rejected by the Reorganized Debtor. The limited extension of the time to assume or reject provided by this Section 6.08 shall not apply to Unexpired Leases of non-residential real property or any written amendments or modifications thereto that are included in the Schedules.

Section 6.09 Post-petition Contracts and Leases

The Debtor shall not be required to assume or reject any contract or lease entered into by the Debtor after the Petition Date. Any such contract or lease shall continue in effect in accordance with its terms after the Effective Date, unless the Reorganized Debtor has obtained a Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court approving rejection or other termination of such contract or lease. Contracts or leases entered into after the Petition Date will be performed by the Reorganized Debtor in the ordinary course of its business.

Section 6.10 Treatment of Claims Arising from Assumption or Rejection

All Allowed Claims for Cure arising from the assumption of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease shall be treated as Administrative Claims pursuant to Section 2.02 of the Plan; all Allowed Claims arising from the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease shall be treated, to the extent applicable, as General Unsecured Claims, unless otherwise ordered by Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court; and all other Allowed Claims relating to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease shall have such status as they may be entitled to under the Bankruptcy Code as determined by Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court.

ARTICLE VII:

PROVISIONS GOVERNING DISTRIBUTIONS

Section 7.01 Distributions for Allowed Claims

- (a) Except as otherwise provided herein or as ordered by the Bankruptcy Court, all Distributions to Holders of Allowed Claims as of the applicable Distribution Date shall be made on or as soon as practicable after the applicable Distribution Date. Distributions on account of Claims that first become Allowed Claims after the applicable Distribution Date shall be made pursuant to Section 8.02 of the Plan and on such day as selected by the Reorganized Debtor, in its sole discretion.
- (b) The Reorganized Debtor shall have the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, to accelerate any Distribution Date occurring after the Effective Date if the facts and circumstances so warrant.

(c) Distributions made after the Effective Date shall be deemed to have been made on the Effective Date.

Section 7.02 Interest of Claims; Dividends

Unless otherwise specifically provided for in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, post-petition interest shall not accrue or be paid on Claims, and no Holder of a Claim shall be entitled to interest accruing on or after the Petition Date on any Claim. Unless otherwise specifically provided for in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, interest shall not accrue or be paid upon any Claim in respect of the period from the Petition Date to the date a final Distribution is made thereon if and after such Claim becomes an Allowed Claim.

Section 7.03 Designation; Distributions by Disbursing Agent

- (a) The Reorganized Debtor or the Disbursing Agent on its behalf shall make all Distributions required to be made to Holders of Class 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 Claims and Interests, on the respective Distribution Dates under the Plan and such other Distributions to other Holders of Claims as are required to be made or delegated to the Disbursing Agent by the Reorganized Debtor.
- (b) If the Disbursing Agent is an independent third party designated to serve in such capacity, such Disbursing Agent shall receive, without further approval from the Bankruptcy Court, reasonable compensation for distribution services rendered pursuant to the Plan and reimbursement of reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with such services from the Reorganized Debtor. No Disbursing Agent shall be required to give any bond or surety or other security for the performance of its duties unless otherwise ordered by the Bankruptcy Court.

Section 7.04 Means of Cash Payment

- (a) Cash payments under this Plan shall be in U.S. funds, and shall be made, at the option, and in the sole discretion, of the Reorganized Debtor, by (i) checks drawn on or (ii) wire transfers from a domestic bank selected by the Reorganized Debtor. Cash payments to foreign creditors may be made, at the option, and in the sole discretion, of the Reorganized Debtor, in such funds and by such means as are necessary or customary in a particular foreign jurisdiction. Cash payments made pursuant to this Plan in the form of checks issued by the Reorganized Debtor shall be null and void if not cashed within 120 days of the date of the issuance thereof. Requests for reissuance of any check shall be made directly to the Reorganized Debtor.
- (b) For purposes of effectuating Distributions under the Plan, any Claim denominated in foreign currency shall be converted to U.S. Dollars pursuant to the applicable published exchange rate in effect on the Petition Date.

Section 7.05 Fractional Distributions

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary, no fractional units of New Common LLC Interests or New Preferred LLC Interests will be issued or distributed, no New MIG Notes will be issued in an amount less than \$1,000, and no cash payments of fractions of cents will be made. Fractional cents shall be rounded to the nearest whole cent (with .5 cent or less to be rounded down). Fractional New Preferred LLC Interests or New Common LLC Interests shall be rounded to the nearest whole unit (with .5 unit or less to be rounded down). New MIG Notes in denominations of less than \$1,000 shall be rounded to the nearest \$1,000 increment (with New MIG Notes in denominations of \$50 or less to be rounded down). No cash will be paid in lieu of such fractional New Preferred LLC Interests or New Common LLC Interests or New MIG Notes in increments of less than \$1,000.

Section 7.06 De Minimis Distributions

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Plan, the Disbursing Agent shall not be required to distribute, and shall not distribute, Cash or other property to the Holder of any Allowed Claim if the amount of Cash or other property to be distributed on account of such Claim is less than \$50. Any Holder of an Allowed Claim on account of which the amount of Cash or other property to be distributed is less than such amount shall have such Claim discharged and shall be forever barred from asserting such Claim against the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor or their respective property. Any Cash or other property not distributed pursuant to this provision shall be the property of the Reorganized Debtor, free of any restrictions thereon.

Section 7.07 Delivery of Distributions

Distributions to Holders of Allowed Claims shall be made by the Disbursing Agent (a) at the addresses set forth on the Proofs of Claim Filed by such Holders, (b) at the addresses reflected in the Schedules if no Proof of Claim has been Filed, or (c) at the addresses set forth in any written notices of address changes delivered to the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor or the Disbursing Agent after the date of any related Proof of Claim or after the date of the Schedules if no Proof of Claim was Filed. If any Holder's Distribution is returned as undeliverable, a reasonable effort shall be made to determine the current address of such Holder, but no further Distributions to such Holder shall be made unless and until the Disbursing Agent is notified of such Holder's then current address, at which time all missed Distributions shall be made to such Holder without interest. Unless otherwise agreed between the Reorganized Debtor and the Disbursing Agent, amounts in respect of undeliverable Distributions made by the Disbursing Agent shall be returned to the Reorganized Debtor, and held in trust by the Reorganized Debtor, until such Distributions are claimed, at which time the applicable amounts shall be returned to the Disbursing Agent for distribution pursuant to the Plan. All claims for undeliverable Distributions must be made on or before the second (2nd) anniversary of the Initial Distribution Date, after which date all unclaimed property shall revert to the Reorganized Debtor free of any restrictions thereon and the claims of any Holder or successor to such Holder with respect to such property shall be discharged and forever barred, notwithstanding any federal or state escheat laws to the contrary. Nothing contained in the Plan shall require the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor or any Disbursing Agent to attempt to locate any Holder of an Allowed Claim.

Section 7.08 Application of Distribution Record Date

At the close of business on the Distribution Record Date, the claims registers for all Claims shall be closed, and there shall be no further changes in the record holders of such Claims. Except as provided herein, the Reorganized Debtor, the Disbursing Agent, and each of their respective agents, successors, and assigns shall have no obligation to recognize any transfer of Claims occurring after the Distribution Record Date and shall be entitled instead to recognize and deal for all purposes hereunder with only those record holders stated on the claims registers as of the close of business on the Distribution Record Date irrespective of the number of Distributions to be made under the Plan to such Persons or the date of such Distributions.

Section 7.09 Withholding, Payment and Reporting Requirements

In connection with the Plan and all Distributions under the Plan, the Disbursing Agent shall, to the extent applicable, comply with all tax withholding, payment, and reporting requirements imposed by any federal, state, provincial, local, or foreign taxing authority, and all Distributions under the Plan shall be subject to any such withholding, payment, and reporting requirements. The Disbursing Agent shall be authorized to take any and all actions that may be necessary or appropriate to comply with such withholding, payment, and reporting requirements. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, (a) each Holder of an Allowed Claim that is to receive a Distribution pursuant to the Plan shall have sole and exclusive responsibility for the satisfaction and payment of any tax obligations imposed by any governmental unit, including income, withholding, and other tax obligations, on account of such Distribution, and including, in the case of any Holder of a Disputed General Unsecured Claim that has become an Allowed General Unsecured Claim, any tax obligation that would be imposed upon the Reorganized Debtor in connection with such Distribution, and (b) no Distribution shall be made to or on behalf of such Holder pursuant to the Plan unless and until such Holder has made arrangements satisfactory to the Disbursing Agent for the payment and satisfaction of such withholding tax obligations or such tax obligation that would be imposed upon the Reorganized Debtor in connection with such Distribution. Any property to be distributed pursuant to the Plan shall, pending the implementation of such arrangements, be treated as an undeliverable Distribution pursuant to Section 7.06 of the Plan.

Section 7.10 Setoffs

The Reorganized Debtor may, but shall not be required to, set off against any Claim or any Allowed Claim, and the payments or other Distributions to be made pursuant to the Plan in respect of such Claim, claims of any nature whatsoever that the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor may have against the Holder of such Claim; provided, however, that neither the failure to do so nor the allowance of any Claim hereunder shall constitute a waiver or release by the Reorganized Debtor of any such claim that the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor may have against such Holder.

Section 7.11 Pre-Payment

Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, any ancillary documents entered into in connection herewith, or the Confirmation Order, the Reorganized Debtor shall have the right to pre-pay, without penalty, all or any portion of an Allowed Claim entitled to payment in Cash at any time; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that any such pre-payment shall not be violative of, or otherwise prejudice, the relative priorities and parities among the Classes of Claims.

Section 7.12 No Distribution in Excess of Allowed Amounts

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, no Holder of an Allowed Claim shall receive in respect of such Claim any Distribution of a value as of the Effective Date in excess of the Allowed amount of such Claim (excluding payments on account of interest due and payable from and after the Effective Date pursuant to the Plan, if any).

Section 7.13 Allocation of Distributions

All Distributions received under the Plan by Holders of Claims shall be deemed to be allocated first to the principal amount of such Claim as determined for United States federal income tax purposes and then to accrued interest, if any, with respect to such Claim.

ARTICLE VIII:

PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING DISPUTED, CONTINGENT, AND UNLIQUIDATED CLAIMS AND DISTRIBUTIONS WITH RESPECT THERETO

Section 8.01 Prosecution of Objections to Claims

(a) Objections to Claims; Estimation Proceedings

Except as set forth in the Plan or any applicable Bankruptcy Court order, all objections to Claims must be Filed and served on the Holders of such Claims by the applicable Claims Objection Bar Date, as the same may be extended by the Bankruptcy Court. If a timely objection has not been Filed to a Proof of Claim or the Schedules have not been amended with respect to a Claim that (i) was Scheduled by the Debtor but (ii) was not Scheduled as contingent, unliquidated, and/or disputed, the Claim to which the Proof of Claim or Scheduled Claim relates will be treated as an Allowed Claim if such Claim has not been allowed earlier. No payments or Distributions shall be made on account of a Claim until such Claim becomes an Allowed Claim. Notice of any motion for an order extending any Claims Objection Bar Date shall be required to be given only to those Persons or Entities that have requested notice in the Chapter 11 Case, or to such Persons as the Bankruptcy Court shall order.

The Debtor (prior to the Effective Date) or Reorganized Debtor may, at any time, request that the Bankruptcy Court estimate any contingent or unliquidated Claim pursuant to section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy Code, regardless of whether the Debtor or the Reorganized

Debtor has previously objected to such Claim or whether the Bankruptcy Court has ruled on any such objection, and the Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to estimate any Claim at any time during litigation concerning any objection to any Claim, including during the pendency of any appeal relating to any such objection. In the event the Bankruptcy Court so estimates any contingent or unliquidated Claim, that estimated amount shall constitute either the Allowed amount of such Claim or a maximum limitation on such Claim, as determined by the Bankruptcy Court, as applicable. If the estimated amount constitutes a maximum limitation on such Claim, the Reorganized Debtor may elect to pursue any supplemental proceedings to object to any ultimate payment on such Claim. All of the aforementioned Claims objection, estimation, and resolution procedures are cumulative and are not necessarily exclusive of one another. Claims may be estimated and thereafter resolved by any permitted mechanisms.

The Reorganized Debtor will have no obligation to review and/or respond to any Claim that is not Filed by the applicable Bar Date unless: (i) the filer has obtained an order from the Bankruptcy Court authorizing it to File such Claim; or (ii) the Reorganized Debtor has consented to the Filing of such Claim in writing.

(b) Authority to Prosecute Objections

After the Effective Date, only the Reorganized Debtor shall have the authority to File objections to Claims and to settle, compromise, withdraw, or litigate to judgment objections to Claims, including, without limitation, Claims for reclamation under section 546(c) of the Bankruptcy Code. The Reorganized Debtor may settle or compromise any Disputed Claim without approval of the Bankruptcy Court.

Section 8.02 Treatment of Disputed Claims

(a) No Distribution Pending Allowance

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan, no payments or Distributions will be made on account of a Disputed Claim or, if less than the entire Claim is a Disputed Claim, the portion of a Claim that is Disputed, until such Disputed Claim becomes an Allowed Claim.

(b) Distributions on Accounts of Disputed Claims Once They are Allowed

The Disbursing Agent shall, on the applicable Distribution Dates, make Distributions on account of any Disputed Claim that has become an Allowed Claim. Such Distributions shall be made pursuant to the provisions of the Plan governing the applicable Class. Such Distributions shall be based upon the Distributions that would have been made to the Holder of such Claim under the Plan if the Disputed Claim had been an Allowed Claim on the Effective Date in the amount ultimately Allowed.

Section 8.03 Provisions for Disputed Claims

On the Effective Date and on each subsequent Distribution Date, the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor shall withhold on a Pro Rata basis from property that would otherwise be distributed to Classes of Claims entitled to Distributions under the Plan on such date, in a separate Disputed Claims Reserve, such amounts or property as may be necessary to equal one hundred percent (100%) of Distributions to which Holders of such Disputed Claims would be entitled under this Plan if such Disputed Claims were allowed in their Disputed Claims Amount. The Debtor or Reorganized Debtor may request, if necessary, estimation for any Disputed Claim that is contingent or unliquidated, or for which the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor determine to reserve less than the Face Amount. The Debtor or Reorganized Debtor shall withhold the applicable portion of the Disputed Claims Reserve with respect to such Claims based upon the estimated amount of each such Claim as estimated by the Bankruptcy Court. If the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor elect not to request such an estimation from the Bankruptcy Court with respect to a Disputed Claim that is contingent or unliquidated, the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor shall withhold the applicable Disputed Claims Reserve based upon the good faith estimate of the amount of such Claim by the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor. If practicable, the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor will invest any Cash that is withheld as the applicable Disputed Claims Reserve in an appropriate manner to ensure the safety of the investment. Nothing in this Plan or the Disclosure Statement shall be deemed to entitle the Holder of a Disputed Claim to postpetition interest on such Claim, however.

Section 8.04 Accounts; Escrows; Reserves

The Debtor and Reorganized Debtor shall, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of this Plan (a) establish one or more general accounts into which shall be deposited all funds not required to be deposited into any other account, reserve or escrow, (b) create, fund and withdraw funds from, as appropriate, the Administrative Claims Reserve, and the Professional Fee Reserve and (c) if practicable, invest any Cash that is withheld as the applicable claims reserve in an appropriate manner to ensure the safety of the investment. Nothing in this Plan or the Disclosure Statement shall be deemed to entitle the Holder of a Disputed Claim to post-petition interest on such Claim, however.

(a) Administrative Claims Reserve

On the Effective Date (or as soon thereafter as is practicable), the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor shall create and fund the Administrative Claims Reserve in the amount budgeted to be used by the Reorganized Debtor to pay Distributions on account of Allowed Administrative Claims, including Claims under section 503(b)(9) and lease payments under section 365(d)(5) of the Bankruptcy Code. To the extent necessary to fund payments to Allowed Claims thereunder, the funds in the Administrative Claims Reserve shall be periodically replenished by the Reorganized Debtor in such amounts as may be determined by the Reorganized Debtor in its sole discretion. The Reorganized Debtor shall be obligated to pay all Allowed Claims designated to be paid from the proceeds of the Administrative Claims Reserve thereunder in excess of the amounts actually deposited in the Administrative Claims Reserve. In the event that any Cash remains in the Administrative Claims Reserve after payment of all

Allowed Claims to be paid thereunder, such Cash shall be distributed to the Reorganized Debtor as provided in Section 7.06 hereof.

(b) Professional Fee Reserve

The Debtor or Reorganized Debtor shall create and fund the Professional Fee Reserve on the Effective Date (or as soon thereafter as is practicable) in the amount of the budgeted but unpaid Professional fees projected through the Effective Date, which amount shall be used to pay Allowed Professional Fee Claims held by (i) any professionals working on behalf of the Debtor and (ii) counsel and any advisers to the Creditors Committee. The Reorganized Debtor shall be obligated to pay all Allowed Professional Fee Claims even if in excess of the amounts actually deposited in the Professional Fee Reserve. In the event that any Cash remains in the Professional Fee Reserve after payment of all Allowed Professional Fee Claims, such Cash will be distributed to the Reorganized Debtor as provided by Section 7.07 hereof.

ARTICLE IX:

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO CONFIRMATION AND CONSUMMATION OF THE PLAN

Section 9.01 Conditions to Confirmation

The following conditions precedent to the occurrence of the Confirmation Date must be satisfied unless any such condition shall have been waived by the Debtor:

- (a) The Confirmation Order shall have been entered in form and substance satisfactory to the Debtor, and shall, among other things:
 - (i) provide that the Debtor and the Reorganized Debtor are authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or appropriate to enter into, implement, and consummate the contracts, instruments, releases, leases, indentures and other agreements or documents created in connection with the Plan;
 - (ii) authorize the issuance of the New Common LLC Interests, New Preferred LLC Interests and the New MIG Notes:
- (b) The Bankruptcy Court finds that adequate information and sufficient notice of the Disclosure Statement, the Plan and the Confirmation Hearing, along with all deadlines for voting on or objecting to the Plan has been given to all relevant parties in accordance with the solicitation procedures governing such service and in substantial compliance with Bankruptcy Rules 2002(b), 3017 and 3020(b);
 - (c) All exhibits to the Plan are in form and substance satisfactory to the Debtor.

Section 9.02 Conditions to the Effective Date

The following conditions precedent to the occurrence of the Effective Date must be satisfied or waived by the Debtor on or prior to the Effective Date in accordance with Section 9.04 of the Plan:

- (a) the Plan and all Plan Supplement documents, including any amendments, modifications or supplements thereto, shall be acceptable to the Debtor;
- (b) the Confirmation Order approves and authorizes the Debtor and the Reorganized Debtor to take all actions necessary or appropriate to implement the Plan, including completion of the transactions contemplated by the Plan and the implementation of and consummation of contracts, instruments, releases and other agreements or documents created in connection with the Plan; and
- (c) each of the exhibits to the Plan and any other necessary documents shall be fully executed and delivered to the Debtor, shall be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtor, and shall be fully enforceable in accordance with their terms.

Section 9.03 Notice of Occurrence of the Effective Date

The Debtor or Reorganized Debtor shall File a notice of the occurrence of the Effective Date within five (5) days thereafter.

Section 9.04 Waiver of Conditions

Each of the conditions set forth in Section 9.02 may be waived in whole or in part by the Debtor without any notice to parties-in-interest or the Bankruptcy Court and without a hearing.

Section 9.05 Consequences of Non-Occurrence of Effective Date

If the Confirmation Order is vacated, (a) the Plan shall be null and void in all respects; (b) any settlement of Claims or Interests provided for hereby shall be null and void without further order of the Bankruptcy Court; and (c) to the extent permitted under the Bankruptcy Code, the time within which the Debtor may assume and assign or reject all Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases shall be extended for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days after the date the Confirmation Order is vacated.

Section 9.06 Substantial Consummation

Substantial Consummation of the Plan shall be deemed to occur on the Effective Date.

ARTICLE X:

RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

Section 10.01 Scope of Retention of Jurisdiction

Under sections 105(a) and 1142 of the Bankruptcy Code, and notwithstanding entry of the Confirmation Order and occurrence of the Effective Date, and except as otherwise ordered by the Bankruptcy Court, the Bankruptcy Court shall retain exclusive jurisdiction over all matters arising out of, and related to, this Chapter 11 Case and the Plan to the fullest extent permitted by law (provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to all civil proceedings arising in or related to the Chapter 11 Case and the Plan, the Bankruptcy Court shall have original but not exclusive jurisdiction, in accordance with section 1334(b) of title 28 of the United States Code), including, among other things, jurisdiction to:

- (a) allow, disallow, determine, liquidate, classify, estimate, or establish the priority, secured, or unsecured status of any Claim not otherwise Allowed under the Plan (other than personal injury or wrongful death Claims, unless agreed by the Holder), including the resolution of any request for payment of any Administrative Claim and the resolution of any objections to the allowance or priority of Claims;
- (b) hear and determine all applications for compensation and reimbursement of expenses of Professionals under the Plan or under sections 327, 328, 330, 331, 503(b), 1103, and 1129(a)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that from and after the Effective Date, the payment of the fees and expenses of the Professionals of the Reorganized Debtor shall be made in the ordinary course of business and shall not be subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court;
- (c) hear and determine all matters with respect to the assumption or rejection of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to which a Debtor is a party or with respect to which a Debtor may be liable, including, if necessary, the nature or amount of any required Cure or the liquidation or allowance of any Claims arising therefrom;
- (d) effectuate performance of and payments under the provisions of the Plan and enforce remedies upon any default under the Plan;
- (e) hear and determine any and all adversary proceedings, motions, applications, and contested or litigated matters arising out of, under, or related to, the Chapter 11 Case, the Avoidance Actions, the Litigation Rights or the Plan;
- (f) enter such orders as may be necessary or appropriate to execute, implement, or consummate the provisions of the Plan and all contracts, instruments, releases, and other agreements or documents created in connection with the Plan, the Disclosure Statement or the Confirmation Order;

- (g) hear and determine disputes arising in connection with the interpretation, implementation, consummation, or enforcement of the Plan, including disputes arising under agreements, documents, or instruments executed in connection with the Plan;
- (h) consider any modifications of the Plan, cure any defect or omission, or reconcile any inconsistency in any order of the Bankruptcy Court, including, without limitation, the Confirmation Order;
- (i) issue injunctions, enter and implement other orders, or take such other actions as may be necessary or appropriate to restrain interference by any Person or Entity with the implementation, consummation, or enforcement of the Plan or the Confirmation Order;
- (j) enter and implement such orders as may be necessary or appropriate if the Confirmation Order is for any reason reversed, stayed, revoked, modified, or vacated;
- (k) hear and determine any matters arising in connection with or relating to the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the schedules to the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, the Confirmation Order, or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement or document created in connection with the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the schedules to the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order;
- (l) enforce, interpret, and determine any disputes arising in connection with any stipulations, orders, judgments, injunctions, releases, exculpations, indemnifications, and rulings entered in connection with the Chapter 11 Case (whether or not the Chapter 11 Case has been closed);
- (m) except as otherwise limited herein, recover all assets of the Debtor and property of the Estates, wherever located;
- (n) hear and determine matters concerning state, local, and federal taxes in accordance with sections 346, 505, and 1146 of the Bankruptcy Code;
- (o) hear and determine all disputes involving the existence, nature, or scope of the Debtor's discharge;
- (p) hear and determine such other matters as may be provided in the Confirmation Order or as may be authorized under, or not inconsistent with, provisions of the Bankruptcy Code; and
 - (q) enter a final decree closing the Chapter 11 Case.

Section 10.02 Failure of the Bankruptcy Court to Exercise Jurisdiction

If the Bankruptcy Court abstains from exercising, or declines to exercise, jurisdiction or is otherwise without jurisdiction over any matter arising in, arising under, or related to the Chapter 11 Case, including the matters set forth in Section 10.01 of the Plan, the provisions of this Article X shall have no effect upon and shall not control, prohibit, or limit the exercise of jurisdiction by any other court having jurisdiction with respect to such matter.

ARTICLE XI:

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 11.01 Administrative Claims

All Administrative Expense Requests (other than as set forth in Sections 3.01(a), 11.02 or this Section 11.01 of the Plan) must be made by application Filed with the Bankruptcy Court and served on counsel for the Reorganized Debtor no later than forty-five (45) days after the Effective Date. In the event that the Reorganized Debtor objects to an Administrative Claim, the Bankruptcy Court shall determine the Allowed amount of such Administrative Claim. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (a) Holders of Administrative Claims first arising from and after the Petition Date through and including [*****], 2010, must File their Administrative Expense Requests on or before [****], 2010, at 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time), or their Claims shall be forever barred; (b) no application seeking payment of an Administrative Claim need be Filed with respect to an undisputed post-petition obligation which was paid or is payable by a Debtor in the ordinary course of business; provided, however, that in no event shall a post-petition obligation that is contingent or disputed and subject to liquidation through pending or prospective litigation, including, but not limited to, alleged obligations arising from personal injury, property damage, products liability, consumer complaints, employment law (excluding claims arising under workers' compensation law), secondary payor liability, or any other disputed legal or equitable claim based on tort, statute, contract, equity, or common law, be considered to be an obligation which is payable in the ordinary course of business; and (c) no application seeking payment of an Administrative Claim need be Filed with respect to Cure owing under an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease if the amount of Cure is fixed or proposed to be fixed by order of the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to a motion to assume and fix the amount of Cure Filed by the Debtor and a timely objection asserting an increased amount of Cure Filed by the non-Debtor party to the subject contract or lease; provided further, however, that post-petition statutory tax claims shall not be subject to the Administrative Claims Bar Date.

Section 11.02 Professional Fee Claims

- (a) All final requests for payment of Professional Fee Claims pursuant to sections 327, 328, 330, 331, 503(b), or 1103 of the Bankruptcy Code must be made by application Filed with the Bankruptcy Court and served on the Reorganized Debtor, their counsel, counsel to the Creditors Committee, and other necessary parties-in-interest no later than sixty (60) days after the Effective Date, unless otherwise ordered by the Bankruptcy Court. Objections to such applications must be Filed and served on the Reorganized Debtor, its counsel, counsel to the Creditors Committee and the requesting Professional or other Entity on or before the date that is thirty (30) days (or such longer period as may be allowed by order of the Bankruptcy Court) after the date on which the applicable application was served.
- (b) The Reorganized Debtor may, without application to or approval by the Bankruptcy Court, retain professionals and pay reasonable professional fees and expenses in connection with services rendered to it after the Effective Date.

Section 11.03 Payment of Statutory Fees

All fees payable pursuant to section 1930 of title 28 of the United States Code, as determined by the Bankruptcy Court at the Confirmation Hearing, shall be paid on or before the Effective Date. All such fees that arise after the Effective Date shall be paid by the Reorganized Debtor. The obligation of each of the Reorganized Debtor to pay quarterly fees to the Office of the United States Trustee pursuant to section 1930 of title 28 of the United States Code shall continue until such time as the Debtor's case is closed.

Section 11.04 Modifications and Amendments

- (a) The Debtor may alter, amend, or modify the Plan or any exhibits thereto under section 1127(a) of the Bankruptcy Code at any time prior to the Confirmation Date. The Debtor shall provide parties-in-interest with notice of such amendments or modifications as may be required by the Bankruptcy Rules or order of the Bankruptcy Court. A Holder of a Claim that has accepted the Plan shall be deemed to have accepted the Plan, as altered, amended, modified, or clarified, if the proposed alteration, amendment, modification, or clarification does not materially and adversely change the treatment of the Claim of such Holder. In the event of any dispute as to whether such proposed alteration, amendment, modification, or clarification materially and adversely changes the treatment of the Claim of any such Holder, the Debtor shall bear the burden of demonstrating that such proposed alteration, amendment, modification, or clarification does not materially adversely change the treatment of the Claim of such Holder.
- (b) After the Confirmation Date and prior to substantial consummation (as defined in section 1101(2) of the Bankruptcy Code) of the Plan, the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, may, under section 1127(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, institute proceedings in the Bankruptcy Court to remedy any defect or omission or to reconcile any inconsistencies in the Plan, the Disclosure Statement approved with respect to the Plan, or the Confirmation Order, and such matters as may be necessary to carry out the purpose and effect of the Plan so long as such proceedings do not adversely affect the treatment of Holders of Claims under the Plan; provided, however, that, to the extent required, prior notice of such proceedings shall be served in accordance with the Bankruptcy Rules or an order of the Bankruptcy Court. A Holder of a Claim that has accepted the Plan shall be deemed to have accepted the Plan, as altered, amended, modified, or clarified, if the proposed alteration, amendment, modification, or clarification does not materially and adversely change the treatment of the Claim of such Holder. In the event of any dispute as to whether such proposed alteration, amendment, modification, or clarification materially and adversely changes the treatment of the Claim of any such Holder, the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor, as the case may be, shall bear the burden of demonstrating that such proposed alteration, amendment, modification, or clarification does not materially adversely change the treatment of the Claim of such Holder.

Section 11.05 Continuing Exclusivity and Solicitation Period

Subject to further order of the Bankruptcy Court, until the Effective Date, the Debtor shall, pursuant to section 1121 of the Bankruptcy Code, retain the exclusive right to amend the Plan and to solicit acceptances thereof, and any modifications or amendments thereto.

Section 11.06 Severability of Plan Provisions

If, prior to Confirmation, any term or provision of the Plan is held by the Bankruptcy Court to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the Bankruptcy Court, at the request of the Debtor, shall have the power to alter and interpret such term or provision to make it valid or enforceable to the maximum extent practicable, consistent with the original purpose of the term or provision held to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, and such term or provision shall then be applicable as altered or interpreted. Notwithstanding any such holding, alteration, or interpretation, the remainder of the terms and provisions of the Plan shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated by such holding, alteration, or interpretation. The Confirmation Order shall constitute a judicial determination and shall provide that each term and provision of the Plan, as it may have been altered or interpreted in accordance with the foregoing, is valid and enforceable pursuant to its terms.

Section 11.07 Successors and Assigns and Binding Effect

The rights, benefits, and obligations of any Person or Entity named or referred to in the Plan shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of, any heir, executor, administrator, personal representative, successor, or assign of such Person or Entity, including, but not limited to, the Reorganized Debtor and all other parties-in-interest in the Chapter 11 Case.

Section 11.08 Compromises and Settlements

From and after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor may compromise and settle various Claims against them, Litigation Rights, and/or Avoidance Actions that they may have against other Persons or Entities without any further approval by the Bankruptcy Court; provided, however, that to the extent any such Claims, Litigation Rights or Avoidance Actions are pending before the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to Filings made during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Case, the Debtor shall be required to obtain an appropriate order of the Bankruptcy Court concluding any such Filings.

Until the Effective Date, the Debtor expressly reserves the right to compromise and settle (subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court) Claims against the Debtor, Avoidance Actions, Litigation Rights or other claims that they may have against other Persons or Entities.

Section 11.09 Releases and Satisfaction of Subordination Rights

All Claims against the Debtor and all rights and claims between or among the Holders of Claims relating in any manner whatsoever to any claimed subordination rights shall be deemed satisfied by the Distributions under, described in, contemplated by, and/or implemented in Article III of the Plan. Distributions under, described in, contemplated by, and/or implemented by the Plan to the various Classes of Claims hereunder shall not be subject to levy, garnishment, attachment, or like legal process by any Holder of a Claim by reason of any claimed subordination rights or otherwise, so that each Holder of a Claim shall have and receive the benefit of the Distributions in the manner set forth in the Plan.

Section 11.10 Releases and Related Matters

(a) Releases by Debtor

As of the Effective Date, for good and valuable consideration, the adequacy of which is hereby confirmed, the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor and any Person or Entity seeking to exercise the rights of the Debtor's estate, including, without limitation, any successor to the Debtor or any estate representative appointed or selected pursuant to section 1123(b)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code, shall be deemed to forever release, waive, and discharge each of the Exculpated Parties from any and all claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action (including Avoidance Actions), and liabilities whatsoever in connection with or related to the Debtor, the conduct of the Debtor's business, the Chapter 11 Case, or the Plan (other than the rights of the Debtor and the Reorganized Debtor to enforce the obligations under the Confirmation Order and the Plan and the contracts, instruments, releases, indentures, and other agreements or documents delivered thereunder), whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, then existing or thereafter arising, in law, equity, or otherwise, that are based in whole or part on any act, omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place on or prior to the Effective Date in any way relating to the Debtor, the conduct of the Debtor's business, the Reorganized Debtor, the Chapter 11 Case, the Disclosure Statement or the Plan, and that may be asserted by or on behalf of the Debtor, the Estate, or the Reorganized Debtor against (i) any of the present or former shareholders, directors, officers, employees or advisors of any of the Debtor, excluding claims resulting from gross negligence, willful misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty, self-interested transactions or intentional tort, (ii) any Professionals of the Debtor, and (iii) the Creditors Committee, its members, and its advisors, respectively (but not its members in their individual capacities); provided, however, that nothing in this Section 11.10(a) shall be deemed to prohibit the Reorganized Debtor from asserting and enforcing any claims, obligations, suits, judgments, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action or liabilities they may have against any employee (including directors and officers) for alleged breach of confidentiality, or any other contractual obligations owed to the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor, including non-compete and related agreements or obligations. Nothing herein constitutes a waiver of any right of the Reorganized Debtor to (i) enforce all rights and claims concerning any and all intellectual property (including, without limitation, trademarks, copyrights, patents, customer lists, trade secrets and confidential or proprietary business information), all of which rights are expressly reserved and not released and (ii) assert any defense based on whether or not applicable standards have been met.

(b) Releases by Holders of Claims

As of the Effective Date and to the extent permitted under Delaware law, Holders of Claims and Interests (a) voting to accept the Plan or (b) abstaining from voting on the Plan and electing not to opt out of the release contained in this paragraph (which by definition, does not include Holders of Claims and Interests who are not entitled to vote in favor of or against the Plan), shall be deemed to have conclusively, absolutely,

unconditionally, irrevocably and forever released and discharged the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor and the present or former shareholders, directors, officers, employees or advisors of the Debtor (the "Releasees") from any and all Claims (including Intercompany Claims and the Alleged Fraudulent Transfer Claims), Interests, Causes of Action or Avoidance Actions that such Entity would have been legally entitled to assert (whether individually or collectively or directly, indirectly or derivatively, at law, in equity or otherwise), based on or relating to, or in any manner arising from, in whole or in part, the Debtor, the Debtor's restructuring, the conduct of the Debtor's business, the Chapter 11 Case, the subject matter of, or the transactions or events giving rise to, any Claim or Interest that is treated in the Plan, the business or contractual arrangements between any Releasee and the Debtor, the restructuring of Claims and Interests prior to or in the Chapter 11 Case, the negotiation, formulation or preparation of the Plan and Disclosure Statement, or related agreements, instruments, or other documents, upon any other act or omission, transaction, agreement, event or other occurrence taking place on or before the Effective Date, other than Claims or liabilities arising out of or relating to any act or omission of the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, or a Releasee that constitutes a failure to perform the duty to act in good faith, with the care of an ordinarily prudent person and in a manner the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Releasee reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Debtor (to the extent such duty is imposed by applicable nonbankruptcy law) where such failure to perform constitutes willful misconduct or gross negligence; provided, however, that nothing in the Plan shall be deemed to prohibit any party from asserting or enforcing any direct contractual obligation against any Releasee, with all rights and defenses to such claims being reserved by the Releasees.

Section 11.11 Discharge of the Debtor

- (a) Pursuant to section 1141(d) of the Bankruptcy Code, and except as otherwise provided herein or in the Confirmation Order, all consideration distributed under the Plan shall be in exchange for, and in complete satisfaction, settlement, discharge, and release, effective as of the Effective Date, of all Claims, Interests and Causes of Action of any nature whatsoever, including any interest accrued on such Claims or Interests from and after the Petition Date, whether known or unknown, against, liabilities of, Liens on, obligations of, rights against, and Interests in, the Debtor or any of its assets or properties and, regardless of whether any property shall have been abandoned by order of the Bankruptcy Court, retained, or distributed pursuant to the Plan on account of such Claims and Interests, including demands, liabilities and Causes of Action that arose before the Effective Date, and all debts of the kind specified in section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code, whether or not (i) a Proof of Claim based upon such debt is Filed or deemed Filed under section 501 of the Bankruptcy Code, (ii) a Claim based upon such debt is Allowed under section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code, (iii) a Claim based upon such debt is or has been disallowed by order of the Bankruptcy Court, or (iv) the Holder of a Claim based upon such debt accepted the Plan. The Plan shall bind all Holders of Claims and Interests, notwithstanding whether any such Holders failed to vote to accept or reject the Plan or votes to reject the Plan.
- (b) As of the Effective Date, except as provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, Persons shall be precluded from asserting against the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor or any of their assets or properties, any other or further claims, debts, rights, Causes of Action,

claims for relief, liabilities, or equity interests relating to the Debtor based upon any act, omission, transaction, occurrence, or other activity of any nature that occurred prior to the Effective Date. In accordance with the foregoing, except as provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, the Confirmation Order shall be a judicial determination, as of the Effective Date, of discharge of all such Claims and other debts and liabilities against the Debtor and termination of all Preferred Equity Interests and Common Equity Interests, pursuant to sections 524 and 1141 of the Bankruptcy Code, and such discharge shall void any judgment obtained against the Debtor at any time, to the extent that such judgment relates to a discharged Claim.

Section 11.12 Injunction

- (a) Except as provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, all Persons that have held, currently hold, may hold, or allege that they hold, a Claim or other debt or liability that is discharged pursuant to Section 11.11 of the Plan, released pursuant to Section 11.10 of the Plan, or are subject to exculpation pursuant to Section 11.13 of the Plan are permanently enjoined from taking any of the following actions against the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, and their respective affiliates or their property on account of any such discharged Claims, debts, or liabilities or terminated Interests or rights: (i) commencing or continuing, in any manner or in any place, any action or other proceeding of any kind; (ii) enforcing, attaching, collecting, or recovering in any manner any judgment, award, decree, or order against the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor or its property; (iii) creating, perfecting, or enforcing any Lien or encumbrance; (iv) asserting a right of setoff, recoupment or subrogation of any kind against any debt, liability, or obligation due to the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor; or (v) commencing or continuing any action, in each such case in any manner, in any place, or against any Person that does not comply with or is inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan.
- (b) Without limiting the effect of the foregoing provisions of this Section 11.12 upon any Person, by accepting Distributions pursuant to the Plan, each Holder of an Allowed Claim receiving a Distribution pursuant to the Plan shall be deemed to have specifically consented to the injunctions set forth in this Section 11.12.
- (c) Nothing in this Section 11.12 shall impair (i) the rights of any Holder of a Disputed Claim to establish its Claim in response to an objection Filed by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor, (ii) the rights of any defendant in an Avoidance Action Filed by the Debtor to assert defenses in such action, or (iii) the rights of any party to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that has been assumed by the Debtor pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court or the provisions of the Plan to enforce such assumed contract or lease.

Section 11.13 Exculpation and Limitations of Liability

(a) On the Effective Date, the Exculpated Parties shall neither have, nor incur any liability to any Holder of a Claim or an Interest, the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, or any other party-in-interest, or any of their respective agents, employees, representatives, advisors, attorneys, or affiliates, or any of their successors or assigns, for

any pre-petition or post-petition act or omission in connection with, relating to, or arising out of, the Chapter 11 Case, the formulation, negotiation, or implementation of the Plan, the solicitation of acceptances of the Plan, the pursuit of Confirmation of the Plan, the Confirmation of the Plan, the consummation of the Plan, or the administration of the Plan or the property to be distributed under the Plan, except for acts or omissions that are the result of fraud, gross negligence, or willful misconduct; provided further, however, that the foregoing is not intended to limit or otherwise impact any defense of qualified immunity that may be available under applicable law; provided further, that each Exculpated Party shall be entitled to rely upon the advice of counsel concerning his, her or its duties pursuant to, or in connection with, the Plan; provided still further, that the foregoing Exculpation shall not be deemed to, release, affect, or limit any of the rights and obligations of the Exculpated Parties from, or exculpate the Exculpated Parties with respect to, any of the Exculpated Parties' obligations or covenants arising pursuant to the Plan or the Confirmation Order.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, no Holder of a Claim or an Interest, the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, no other party-in-interest, none of their respective agents, employees, representatives, advisors, attorneys, or affiliates, and none of their respective successors or assigns shall have any right of action against any of the Exculpated Parties for any act or omission in connection with, relating to, or arising out of, the Chapter 11 Case, the formulation, negotiation, or implementation of the Plan, solicitation of acceptances of the Plan, the pursuit of Confirmation of the Plan, the Confirmation of the Plan, the consummation of the Plan, or the administration of the Plan or the property to be distributed under the Plan, except for acts or omissions which are the result of fraud, gross negligence, or willful misconduct.

Section 11.14 Term of Injunctions or Stays

Unless otherwise provided herein or in the Confirmation Order, all injunctions or stays provided for in the Chapter 11 Case under sections 105 or 362 of the Bankruptcy Code or otherwise, and extant on the Confirmation Date (excluding any injunctions or stays contained in the Plan or the Confirmation Order), shall remain in full force and effect until the Effective Date.

Section 11.15 Revocation, Withdrawal or Non-Consummation

The Debtor reserves the right to revoke or withdraw the Plan at any time prior to the Confirmation Date and to File subsequent plans of reorganization. If the Debtor revokes or withdraws the Plan prior to the Confirmation Date, or if Confirmation or the Effective Date does not occur, then (a) the Plan shall be null and void in all respects, (b) any settlement or compromise embodied in the Plan (including the fixing or limiting to an amount certain any Claim or Class of Claims), assumption or rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases effected by the Plan, and any document or agreement executed pursuant to the Plan shall be deemed null and void, and (c) nothing contained in the Plan, and no acts taken in preparation for consummation of the Plan, shall (i) constitute or be deemed to constitute a waiver or release of any Claims against, or any Interests in, the Debtor, or any Avoidance Actions, Litigation Rights or other claims by or against the Debtor, the Creditors Committee or any Person or Entity, (ii)

prejudice in any manner the rights of the Debtor, the Creditors Committee, or any Person or Entity in any further proceedings involving a Debtor, or (iii) constitute an admission of any sort by the Debtor, the Creditors Committee, or any other Person or Entity.

Section 11.16 Plan Supplement

The Plan Supplement shall be Filed with the Bankruptcy Court at least ten (10) days prior to the Voting Deadline or by such later date as may be established by order of the Bankruptcy Court. Upon such Filing, all documents set forth in the Plan Supplement may be inspected in the office of the Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court during normal business hours. Holders of Claims or Interests may obtain a copy of any document set forth in the Plan Supplement upon written request to the Debtor in accordance with Section 11.17 of the Plan.

Section 11.17 Dissolution of the Committee

On the Effective Date, the Creditors Committee shall be dissolved and its members shall be deemed released of any continuing duties, responsibilities and obligations in connection with the Debtor's Chapter 11 Case or the Plan and its implementation, and the retention and employment of the Creditors Committee's attorneys, accountants and other agents shall terminate.

Section 11.18 Continued Confidentiality Obligations

Pursuant to the terms thereof, members of and advisors to the Creditors Committee, any other holder of a Claim or Interest and their respective predecessors, successors and assigns shall continue to be obligated and bound by the terms of any confidentiality agreement executed by them in connection with this Chapter 11 Case or the Debtor, to the extent that such agreement, by its terms, may continue in effect after the Confirmation Date.

Section 11.19 Notices

Any notice, request, or demand required or permitted to be made or provided under the Plan shall be (a) in writing, (b) served by (i) certified mail, return receipt requested, (ii) hand delivery, (iii) overnight delivery service, (iv) first class mail, or (v) facsimile transmission, and (c) deemed to have been duly given or made when actually delivered or, in the case of notice by facsimile transmission, when received and telephonically confirmed, addressed as follows:

If to the Debtor:

Greenberg Traurig LLP

Attn: Nancy A. Mitchell, Esq.

Maria J. DiConza, Esq.

200 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10166

Tel: (212) 801-9200 Fax: (212) 801-6400

If to the Reorganized Debtor:

MIG, Inc. 5960 Fairview Road

Suite 400

Charlotte, NC 28210

Tel: (704) 496-2750 Fax: (704) 496-2751

If to the Committee:

Baker & McKenzie LLP

Attn: Carmen Lonstein, Esq.

Lawrence Vonckx, Esq.

One Prudential Plaza, Suite 3500

130 East Randolph Drive

Chicago, Illinois 60601

Tel: (312) 861-8000

Fax: (312) 861-2899

Section 11.20 Computation of Time

In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed by the Plan, the provisions of Rule 9006(a) of the Bankruptcy Rules shall apply.

Section 11.21 Governing Law

Unless a rule of law or procedure is supplied by federal law (including the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules), the laws of (a) the State of Delaware shall govern the construction and implementation of the Plan and (except as may be provided otherwise in any such agreements, documents, or instruments) any agreements, documents, and instruments executed in connection with the Plan and (b) the laws of the state of incorporation of the Debtor shall govern corporate governance matters with respect to the Debtor; in each case without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of law thereof.

Section 11.22 Exhibits

All exhibits are incorporated into and are a part of this Plan as if set forth in full herein, and, to the extent not annexed hereto, such exhibits shall be Filed with the Bankruptcy Court on or before the Exhibit Filing Date. After the Exhibit Filing Date, copies of exhibits can be obtained upon written request to Greenberg Traurig LLP, The Nemours Building, 1007 North Orange Street, Suite 1200, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn: Scott D. Cousins, Esq. and Sandra G. M. Selzer, Esq., and 200 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10166, Attn: Nancy A. Mitchell, Esq. and Maria J. DiConza, Esq., counsel to the Debtor or by downloading such exhibits from the Bankruptcy Court's website at http://www.deb.uscourts.gov (registration required) or the Claims Agent's website at http://www.gardencitygroup.com/cases/fullcase/1517. To the extent any exhibit is inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, unless otherwise ordered by the Bankruptcy Court, the non-exhibit portion of the Plan shall control.

Dated: November 17, 2009 GREENBERG TRAURIG, LLP

/s/ Scott D. Cousins

Scott D. Cousins (DE Bar No. 3079) Sandra G. M. Selzer (DE Bar No. 4283) The Nemours Building 1007 North Orange Street, Suite 1200 Wilmington, Delaware 19801

Telephone: (302) 661-7000 Facsimile: (302) 661-7360 Email: cousinss@gtlaw.com selzers@gtlaw.com

-and-

Nancy A. Mitchell Maria J. DiConza 200 Park Avenue New York, New York 10166 Telephone: (212) 801-9200 Facsimile: (212) 801-6400 Email: mitchelln@gtlaw.com

Counsel for the Debtor and Debtor-in-Possession

diconzam@gtlaw.com